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INTRODUCTION

Attorney Clifford M. Greene contacted me on September 6, 2007. Mr. Greene
inquired if | could conduct an investigation for the City of Northfield. Mr. Greene
advised me the City had identified specific issues for investigation by the Office
of the State Auditor, He said the Auditor had declined to exercise jurisdiction
while encouraging the City to address or invesligale these issues through ather
MEeans.

AUTHORITY AND APPOINTMENT

Section 3.7 of the Northfield Charter provides: “The council or an officer or
officers formally authorized by the council may make invesligations into the city's
affairs. The council may provide for an examination or audit of the accounts of an
officer or depariment of tha city government. The council may conduct surveys or
rasearch studies of subjects of municipal concemn.”

Al a regular meeting of the Neorthfield City Council on September 10, 2007, the
Council passed Motion M2007-0131. The motion authorized Everett Law, LLC o
undertake preliminary discussions with the Mayor, City Council and City
Administrator to identify issues of concem and to determine the scope af work
necessary to conduct an appropriate investigation. On October 15, 2007, the
City Coundil reviewed the proposed scope of work and cost estimate. The
Council approved Motion M2007-0153 authorizing this investigation.

LIMITATIONS ON SCOPE

As | began this investigation, the Goodhue County Attomey's Office also began
reviewing the allegations and evidence lo delermine whether to conduct a
criminal investigation. | met periodically with representatives of the County
Attorney's Office and Sheriff's Office to ensure my efforls would not impede their
ability to fully investigate matters they deemed potentially criminal in nature.
Communications continued throughout the course of my work. The County




Attorney's Office and Sheriff's Office asked me nof to take action on certain
issues and allegations pending the outcome of their criminal review.

During my investigation, Lee Lansing sued the City of Northiield and some of its
elected and appointed officials. His lawsuit alleged violations of the Open
Meeting Law and Data Practices Acl. After | consulted with Altorney Greene, we
determined the facts surrounding those allegations would likely emerge through
the civil litigation process and this investigation need not concurrently address
them. Lee Lansing subsequently withdrew as a plaintiff from that lawsuit.

INVESTIGATIVE ACTIVITIES

Everett Law, LLC conducted approximately two dozen personal interviews during
the course of this investigation. We interviewed the following individuals:

o Lee Lansing (3 times) o Jim Pokorney

o Scott Davis = Jon Dennison

o Amie Melson o Noah Cashman

o Kris Viohs o Al Roder (2 times)

o Roger Knutson, Esq. o Bill Gorton (McComb Group)
o Elizabelh Wheeler a Kathleen McBride

o Paul Norby o Randy Lutz

o Beth Closner =~ Thomas Harlan, Esq.

o John Donnelly (Frauenshuh) o Brian O'Connell

o John Brooking = Scott McPhee

o Mark Ruff (Ehlers)

We contacted other individuals to obtain background information, documents,
and other materials potentially relevant to the investigation.

Additional investigalive activities included:

= Reviewing agendas, minutes, City Council discussion items and video
recordings of Northfield City Council mesetings.

o Analyzing a large volume of documents abtained from the City of
Northfield and other individuals and entities.

o Caonducting research inlo records of property ownarship, morgages,
transaclions. elc. on file with the Rice County Recorder's office.
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Researching and reviewing court records, filings, affidavits, and exhibits
pertaining ta litigation invelving individuals mentioned in this report

Everalt Law, LLC devoled approximately 168 hours to investigative activities,
exclusive of ime spenl reviewing evidence as necessary in the preparation of
this repaort.

INTERPRETATION OF THE EVIDENCE

The Morthfield City Council appointed Everett Law, LLC to conduct an
investigation and to prepare and submit a report that includes Findings of Fact
and Conclusions. This report contains many undisputed facts. Yel in parforming
this work, the investigator found it necessary to consider both ambiguous and
sharply conflicting evidence and to draw reasonable inferences and conclusions
from the evidence as a whole. The investigator found it necessary to somelimes
reject the factual contentions of one individual in favor of those put forth by
another. Accordingly, in interpreting the evidence, the findings and conclusions
set forth in this report 1o some exlent constitule the investigator's opinion as to
the events that transpired. Likewise, the investigator has provided opinions as to
the legal or administrative significance of those events.

The impossibility of including every statemenl and element of avidence relative to
the investigation required Everett Law, LLC to exercise judgment partaining to
the content of this report in order to provide a useable product.

Individual data subjects who deem the contenis of this report inaccurate may
utilize the provisions of 13.04, subdivision 5 to challenge the accuracy of the
data.

ORGANIZATION OF REPORT

Everett Law, LLC has provided this report and Addendum A to the Northfield City
Council, The Minnesota Government Data Practices Act provides that data that
has nol resulted in the final disposition of a disciplinary action against employees
of a government enlity are “private data.” See Minn. Stat. § 13.43, subd. 2,
Addendum A contains private data and may be disclosed only to the data
subjects and those employees or officials of the City whose job assignments
reasonably require access fo that dala.
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OVERVIEW OF ISSUES AND FINDINGS

This overview does not provide a full account of all the evidence. Rather, the
intended purpose of this overview is to orient the reader to the contents of this
report by identifying the issues examined and providing a brief summary of the
investigative findings and conclusions.

1.

Did any City official, employee, consultant or private party exerl improper
influence or take improper action with regard (o the site selection process
for a new municipal liquor store?

Finding: Yes. Mayor Lansing exerted improper influence to secure a
reduction in the park dedication fee for the developers of 800 Division
Street and in an attempl o have the new municipal liquor store become a
tenant in his son’s development project.

Did City employees or officials act improperly regarding the issuance of a
temporary certificate of occupancy for second floor office space at 618
Division Street South?

Finding: Mo. An outside law firm already investigated this issue on behalf
of the City. The investigation concluded the City did nol acl erranecusly in
its issuance of the lemporary cerificate of occupancy.

Did City employees or officials act improperly following the issuance of a
temporary certificate of occupancy for second floor office space at 618
Division Street South?

Finding: Yes. Mayor Lansing exerted improper influence regarding the
temporary cerfificate of occupancy. He also exerted improper influence
aver an outside investigation conducted to examine the issuance of the
lempaorary cerlificate of occupancy.

4. Whether the City violated the employee pay plan.

Finding: Mo. The evidence indicates no violation.

5. Whether the cily has mismanaged the Crossings project.

Finding: No. The evidence indicates no mismanagement of the
Crossings project.
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&. Whether the City has a legal conflict of interest in the engagemenl or
retention of the City Engineer.

Finding: Everett Law, LLC has not finalized this inquiry. The City Council
may expect to receive a report within two o three weeks,

Additionally, a City official identified some issues the investigator determined do
nol warrant review. The official queslioned whether the City has policies
governing the use of purchasing cards and out-of-state travel. In fact, the City
does have policies, which they have recently updated. The official presented
generalized allegations regarding favonlism in allowing out-of-stale travel, bul
provided no specific information that would allow investigative review. Likewise,
the official presented generalized allegations that employees using city
purchasing cards overspent on lunches. Again, the official provided no specific
examples or information that would allow for further investigation.
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ENTITIES AND PROPERTIES DISCUSSED IN THIS REPORT

DHJJ, Inc.

New Division Development
Company, LLC (or NDDC)

The Lansing Family Trust

Six Hundred on Division,
600 Division Placoe

600 Division

618 Division

A corporation owned by David Lansing, son of
Mayor Lee Lansing. DHJJ, Inc. acguired the
assets of Lansing Enterprises and now operales
the business known as Lansing Hardware.
(Source: Lee Lansing)

A limited liability company formed by Randy Lutz
and Beth Closner for lhe purpose of redeveloping
the property at 618 Division Streel. (Source:
Randy Lutz and Beth Closner)

A trust crealed by Lee Lansing and his spouse for
estale planning purposes. Lee Lansing and his
spouse are the only trustees. (Source: Lee
Lansing)

A business enlity contemplated by David Lansing
and Paul Norby to develop a commercial building
at that same address. Thay never formed the
business entity. (Source: Paul Norby).

Commonly known as the “Tires Plus” property.
The City selected this site, owned by David and
Heidi Lansing, as the preferred location for a new
liquor store in March, 2007,

The site of Lansing Hardware. The Lansing
Family Trust sold this property to NDDC and
holds a second mortgage on this property, DHJJ,
Inc. leases this property for the operation of
Lansing Hardware.
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INDIVIDUALS MENTIONED IN THIS REPORT

The following provides a guide to identifying and undersianding the roles of
individuals and enlities mentioned in this report, exclusive of city officials.

Beth Closner

Ehlers and Associates |
Mark Ruff

Frauenshuh [ John
Donnelly

David Lansing

Randy Lutz

MeComb Group ! Bill
Gorton

Paul Norby

A principal in Construction Consulting Partners,
Inc. She and Randy Lutz formed New Division
Development Company, LLC to redevelop the
property at 618 Division.

A financial consulting firm serving governmental
entities, The City of Northfield has had an
ongoing relationship with this firm and requested
them to conduct a financial analysis of various
site options as potential locations for a new
municipal liquor store.

A firm providing real estate, consulling, and other
services. After the City identified 600 Division as
a preferred site for the municipal liquor store, the
City worked with John Donnelly and this firm to
negaliate with the property owners.

The son of Mayor Lee Lansing. David Lansing
owns DHJJ, Ing. In tum, DHJJ, Inc, owns
Lansing Hardware, David Lansing and his wife,
Heidi, also own the property at 600 Division.
David Lansing worked with Paul Norby and
others to create a commercial development at
this sile.

A principal in Construction Consulting Partners,
Inc. He and Beth Closner formed New Division
Development Company, LLC to redevelop the
property at 618 Division.

Provides services that include ratail site selaection,
market and consumer research, financial
feasibility, economic impact assessmenls, and
design and development consulting, The City
requested Bill Gorton and this firm to provide
sarvices in conjunction with site selection for the
proposed liquor store.

Affiliated with First National Mortgage Sources. A
self-described friend of Lee Lansing, he loaned
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moaney to DHJJ, Ing, to assist David Lansing in
purchasing 600 Division. Morby owns the
property adjacent lo 600 Division. He and Dawvid
Lansing proposed combining their properties to
create 600 on Division and/or 600 Division Place.
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ISSUE ONE

Did any City official, employee, consullant or private party exert improper
influence or take improper action with regard to the site selection process for a
new municipal liguor store?

OVERVIEW

The City of Northfield operates a municipal liquor store, For several years, Cily
officials have questioned whether the size of the current liquor store is adequale.
During this time, the City has considered relocating the store (o a [arger location.
Thay engaged consultants to conduct studies and city staff worked to idantify
polential sites.

David Lansing, son of Mayor Lee Lansing, purchased the property at 600
Division Street. Paul Norby owned property adjacent to 600 Division Streel. He
and David Lansing obtained approval from the Northfield City Council to combine
their properties for purposes of crealing a commercial development al 600
Division Street.

David Lansing and Paul Norby sought to have the Northfield Municipal Liquor
Store as a lenant in the new building they proposed 1o construct. In March,
20086, the City identified 600 Division Street as its preferred site for a municipal
liquor store. The City engaged Frauenshuh to represent it in negoliations with
the owners [ developers of the property. The negoliations ended withoul an
agreement to move forward.

This investigation concludes Mayor Lee Lansing exerted improper influence to
provide benefits to the developers. This investigation further concludes Mayor
Lee Lansing exeried improper influence so the City's municipal iquor store would
become a tenant al 600 Division Street. The fact the City did not ultimately enter
into a lease or purchase agreement with the Mayor's son does not detract from
the conclusion that Mayor Lansing acted inappropriately during the development
and site selection process.

FACTS

Lansing Family Trust Purchase Agreement for 600 Division Street — April
2005

Paul Norby considers Lee Lansing a friend with whom he had coffee "every day

for years.” Morby indicates that Lee and David Lansing Iried o "get the liquor
store forever.”
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William B. Clifford owned the property at 600 Division Street.! According to
Morby, Lee Lansing had wanted to buy thal property for years. Clifford decided
o sall the property in 2005.

On April 5, 2005, the Lansing Family Trust entered into a purchase agreement
with Clifford to acquire the property. Lee Lansing signed the purchase
agreement as “Joseph L. Lansing, trustee, Lansing Family Trust.” They agreed
on a purchase price of $300,000. (Sources: Purchase Agreement, HUD closing
statemant).

The HUD dosing statement reflects a payment of $9,000 in earnest money for
the purchase of the property. A sworn affidavit by Lee Lansing states, "The
eamest money of $1,000 in the Purchase Agreement and the additional eamesi
mm?y of $8,000 in the HUD dosing statement came from Lansing Enterprises,
Ing.”

Conflict of Interest Analysis, 618 Division Street - September 1, 2005

Mayor Lansing became aware of the City's conflict of interest concems over
municipal transactions invelving properties in which he had a financial interest.
Thiz notice came quite apart from the development of 600 Division Street. The
Lansing Family Trust had sold the property at 618 Division Street 1o New Division
Development Company (NDDC) in April, 2005. As disclosed by Mayor Lansing,
the Lansing Family Trust stood to benefit from the successful development of
618 Division Street. NDDC approached the City with the idea of having the liquor
store relocate to their propearty.

In a letter dated September 1, 2005, Northfieid City Attorney Maren Swanson
requested another municipal attormey, Kurt Fisher, analyze the exislence of any
conflicts of interest that might arise if the City considered 618 Division as a site
for the liquor store. She explained in her letter:

“The new owner of the property has approached the City of
Morthfield o propose that the municipal liquor store be relocated (o
that property. The question is whether the Mayor may have a
conflict of interest in any future sale, lease or contract batween the
property owner and the City.”

' It is unclear whather Ciifford ownad the property directly or awned it Ivough a legal entity under
his control. This distinclion is not relevant to the issues examined in Bis report.

* The date of the purchase agreement is uncertan. Mayor Lansing siales in his swom affidavit
the agreement was entered nlo between “tha Lansing Family Trust and William Clifferd on or

about March 29, 2005 The datle written on the purchase agreement indicalas il was signed on
April 5. 2005

! The affidavit was obtasined through a search of records on file af the Rice County courthouse
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(Source, Swanson letter to K. Fisher, Sept. 1, 2003)

Fisher wrote to Mayor Lansing on October 28, 2005. He indicated, "My opimion,
based on the limited information | have and some assumplions is that there are
reasons to conclude that a lease between the City of Northfield and New Division
Development [for 618 Division] would violate” state law. (Source: K. Fisher letter
to L. Lansing, Oct. 28, 2003)

David and Heidi Lansing Purchase of 600 Division — October 2005

The Lansing Family Trust eventually “assigned” the interesl in its purchase
agreement for 600 Division Streel 1o David L. Lansing and Heidi Lansing.
(Source: Lee Lansing Affidavit) David and Heidi Lansing closed on the purchase
of this property on Oclober 3, 2005. (Source: Lee Lansing Affidavil)

In a letter to the investigator dated December 7, 2006, Mayor Lansing indicated
the $9.000 in earnest money “paid 1o William Clifford from Lansing Enterprises,
Inc. became a loan to David L. and Heidi J. Lansing.” Mayor Lansing further
indicated his son fully repaid the loan by November 29, 2005.

Norby owned a parcel adjacent to 600 Division Street. He operated a morigage
company from a house situated on his property. Norby indicated he “got David
[Lansing] financing to purchase the site al 600 Division.” David and Heidi
Lansing executed a morigage with Voyager Bank for $248,000 to purchase the
600 Division Street property. (Source: HUD Closing Statement, morigage
document) David Lansing paid $51,598.42 in cash at the time of closing. A
swom affidavit by David Lansing discloses the source of the cash:

o Norby loaned $48,000 to DHJJ, inc. to fund the purchase of 600 Division
Street. The loan is evidenced by an unsigned note dated Oclober 3,
2005.

o In turn, DHJJ loaned David Lansing $51,598.42 to purchase the property.
Of this amount, $48,000 came from the Norby loan. The loan from DHJJ,
inc. to David Lansing is evidenced by an unsigned note dated Oclober 3,
2005.

According to Norby, he and David Lansing began talking about joining their
properties afier David Lansing bought 600 Division Street.

Clifford, the former owner of the property, leased it to MSB Tires, LLC beginning
in 2001. The lease expired on May 31, 2005, before David and Heidi Lansing
purchased the property in October of that year. (Source: Lease document) By
purchasing the property, David and Heidi Lansing became both the owners of the
property and the landlords for MSB Tires. MSEB Tires conlinued to rent space al
GO0 Division Street on a month-to-month basis.
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Mayor Lansing's Interactions with Tires Plus

According to Scott McPhee, President of MSB Tires, he received a phone call
from Mayor Lansing sometime in October, 2005. Mayor Lansing said “he bought
the store,” referring to the property at 600 Division Streel. (McPhee Intv. at 3)
Mayor Lansing indicated he'd like to meet with them [McPhee and his partner,
Larry Brandt] sometime in October. (McPhea Intv. at 3)

McPhee described the October 2005 meeting with Mayor Lansing. According 1o
him, McPhee, Larry Brandt and Jim Diamond attended on behalf of MSB Tires,
also known as Tires Plus. The meeting look place "in the Mayor's office.”
McPhee related Mayor Lansing “showed us plans of what he was planning to do
with the area. . . . and basically said we needed to find some new property and
build a new store.” (McPhee Intv. at 4) Mayor Lansing disclaimed that he
referred to the property at 600 Division Street as "his.”

Everatt: Ckay. Alright. And, and, and Lee maybe this was a slip of
the tongue at the time | don't know. But they have, they
have a clear recol-, recollection that your words were um
that you were going to be redeveloping 800 Division.

Lansing: | would, | don't have any interest in 600 Division. You know
that's, if | even had wanted to develop it that would be, it
would not be my, my ah, would nol be my choice.

{Lansing Intv. at 14-15)

Mayor Lansing confirms his son David did not attend the meeting with the Tires
Plus representatives. (Lansing Intv. at 14) During the meeting, Mayor Lansing
indicated he would work with the Tires Plus owners to assure a smooth
transition, (Source: McPhee Intv. at 4; Lansing Inty. at 14)

McPhee did not know David Lansing had any involvement or association with the
property al 600 Division Street. “[Tlhe first contact | ever had with David was a
fax that | got of a letter basically saying that we have 30 days to leave the
bulding.” {(McPhee Intv. al 5) The letler was dated March 29, 2006. (McPhee
Intv. at &) Prior to that letter, Tires Plus believed Lee Lansing owned the 600

Division Street property.
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Indeed, Tires Plus wrote the monthly rent checks for the property 1o Lee Lansing.
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In addition to the November 21, 2005 check, Tires Plus also wrole the following:

Check 023590 to Lee Lansing for $1634.66 on November 30, 2005
Check 024028 lo Lee Lansing for $1634.66 on January 1, 2006
Check 024366 to Lee Lansing for $1634.66 on January 26, 2006
Check 024617 lo Lee Lansing for $1634.66 on February 27, 2006
Check 024838 to Lee Lansing for $1634.66 on March 28, 2006

Mayor Lansing indicated he turned over the rant checks to David Lansing.
{Lansing Intv. a1 12; L. Lansing memo to W. Evereit, Dec. 7, 2007) Lee Lansing
stated he put the checks in the cash register at the hardware store. (Lansing

Intv. at 12) Lee Lansing provided copies of the endorsed checks for

consideration in this investigation, DHJJ, Inc. endorsed all but one of the checks.

This check, dated February 27, 2006, had no personal or merchant

endorsement. Instead, a bank endorsement stamped on the back of the check

indicated “CREDITED TO THE ACCOUNT OF WITHIN NAMED PAYEE, LACK OF
ENDORSEMENT GUARANTEED.™

Tires Plus issued a 10-89 to Lee Lansing for the 2005 rent payments. Mayor
Lansing wrote to McPhee and Brandt late in 2006 indicating he fell “very

confused with the 10-09 issues” and planned to have his accountant look into the
matter. (L. Lansing letter, Nov. 6, 2006) Lee Lansing provided a letler 0 the
investigator dated December 10, 2007 from the accounting firm for Tires Plus.

This letter stated Tires Plus erroneously issued the 10-99 to Lee Lansing.
Redevelopment of 600 Division Streel

Mayor Lansing indicated he worked with his son and others on the

redevelopment project planned for 600 Division Street. Mayor Lansing, David

* Mo svidence Indicates Lee Lansing received tha proceads of this chack
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Lansing, Norby and Ray Cox of Northfield Construction Company held meetings
on a regular basis to plan the developmen.

Evearelt:

Lansing:
Everait:

Lansing:

Evereit:

Lansing:

Everefl:

Lansing:

Everell;

Lansing:

Were [when] moving forward with the idea and the process
for developing 600 what role did you play?

Menior,
Okay. Did you give him advice?

Well it's my son. | mean we would, we would talk through
things routinely.

Okay. Did you write letiers for him?

Ah. We would have ah, we would have several meelings ah
— while this was all going on we would probably meet with
the contractor ah with Paul and David ah and you know maost
of the time | would participate in those. We would have
weekly or sometimes twice a week meetings. Discussing all
sorts of things including the ah, including the redevelopment
of, of a 600 Division. And ah David and | most generally of,
oftentimes with Paul would go back and write the notes and
write our, our ah recollection and our understanding of those
meelings. So sure | would help David. That's just like any,
any, any other father might.

Okay.

But David the, the letters were David's. It's, it was his work
and | would help him with the typing and we would work
through the content and, and review them together and so
on. So.

Okay. And did that include ah. Letters to ah the city?

wWell | would help David with, with letters 1o the city. And
were letters to — beg your pardon?

{Lansing Intv. at 15}

Morby related they had never done development work before and they lel "Ray
Cox lead the charge.” He further explained:

= They originally intended to pul up a general commercial building.
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o When putting up a building, you need to have it 50-70% leased to get
financing.

o He asked the bank whal would happen if they had the liquor store as a
tenant. He leamed they would not need to have the building leased to the
same extent. The bank told him to pursue the liquor store oplion; it would
allow them to put up the building faster.

Up-front development costs could have been as high as $100,000 and he
is personally out about $30,000.

o

o The Lansing Family Trust is set up for David's benefil. The trust lent
DHJJ, Inc. money for the up-front development cosls.

When asked if he or entiies under his control provided funding for upfront
development costs to David Lansing,Mayor Lansing responded:

Everat: Okay. Well I'm, I'm just trying to give you a chance 1o react
to what Norby said. Because Norby was very clear in saying
that you fronted some of the development costs for David.

Lansing: Thal | fronted some of the development costs for David?
Evereti: Yep.
Lansing: | don't think so. But I'l check that out. | don't even know

what the development costs are. | mean | don't know what
he's put in the building.

(Lansing Intv. al 18; see also Lansing Intv. al 15 (Mayor Lansing made no
investment in development costs))

Request for Minor Subdivision, Park Dedication Fee — March 20, 2006

Norby and David Lansing requested City Council approval of a minor subdivision
to be named Six Hundr:?:l on Division. This minor subdivision would allow them
1o combine their two adjacent properties into one parcel. The City placed the
proposal on the Council's regular agenda for March 20, 2006. f. staff .
memarandum discussing the minor subdivision reqy&st stal&q. According lo the
park dedication requirements of the City's 5udeismn_ragJLahan5. the applicant
is required to pay a park dedication fee of $25,544.97.

Section 34-703 of the city code requires a park dedication for every “plat, replat,

or subdivision of land allowing development for residential, commercial,
industrial, or other uses ... ."
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Section 34-704(3) provides. “The park, trail and open space dedication
requirement of the land to be subdivided for a commercial, light industrial, andior
nonresidential subdivision or development shall be five percent of the gross area
included in the land to be subdivided.”

Section 34-708 allows the city lo accept a cash payment in lieu of land
dedication.

Section 34-709 sels forth the formula for calculating the amount of cash payment
in iew of land dedication. Thal section provides:

“If the cily elecls o accept a cash payment in lieu of land . . . the
developer shall pay (o the city the appraised fair market value of tha
land, at the time of final plat approval, that would otherwise bea
dedicated for park, Irail and open space under section 34-704. The
total amount of cash payment in lieu of land owed fo the city shall
be determined by laking the tofal number of acres owed the
municipality multiplied by the per-acre appraised fair market value
of the total development. ** ** The appraised fair market value of
the land shall be determined by a qualified licensed appraiser and
shall mest the uniform standards of professional appraisal praclice.
The appraiser shall be mutually selected by the city and the
developer. The appraisal fee shall be paid by the developer.”

(Emphasis added)
Section 34-702 provides the City Council with discretion to waive or
reduce the park dedication requirements.

According to Brian O'Connell, the City determined it would nol require an
appraisal since both properties had recently sold and the purchase prices
provided a reasonable proxy of the fair markat value of the total

developmentL.
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Norihfield Senior Planner Dan Olson documented the park dedication fee
calculation for the Six Hundred on Division minor subdivision in a staff

note dated March 8, 2006.

NOTE TO FILE

Pave:  Murch 8, 2006
From: Dan Olson, Semos Plonmer

fe:  Park dedication calculation for Six Hundred on Division Minor Subdavision

The following is the caleulation for the park dedication fres:

s  According to Northfield Construction Company (Contact Person), the following 1s
the cost paid by the property owner for the land (16,396 square feet):

s Paul Nordby: 5210900
o  David Lansing: S04, 000

o Total cost of land = $510,900 ($31.16 per square foat)

o  Park dedication fee requirement for commercial propertics is the value of 5% of
the gross land acreage. B19.80 5F is 5% of the total gross acreage.

« Total park dedication fec to be paid is $19.80 x $3116 = 525,544.97

Mayor Lansing became aware of the amount of the proposed park dedication
fee. (Lansing memo to Roder, Mar. 20, 2006). Mayor Lansing wrole a memo o
Administrator Al Roder on March 17, 2006 discussing various items of city
business, including Six Hundred on Division. Mayor Lansing wrote, "At the
request of the owners, this agenda item may be removed from the Agenda.”
Mayor Lansing later explained the developers had no interest in having lhis item
come before the City Council with a park dedication fee in excess of $25,000.
According to Mayor Lansing, this was a “deal breaker” for the developers.

{Lansing Intv. at 24)
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Befora the Council met on March 20, 2006, Mayor Lansing wrole a mema (o
Administrator Roder protesting the proposed fee:

Memo To: - Al Roder Memo From:  Lamsing
Moo Date: V2020086  Memo Subject: 600 Division

1 beave had several calls sbout this Agends item already.  Unless there is something figured oul quickly, 1
barve no chokce bt to pull it from the Agenda.  How do you wait o sccomplish (hat't

| ean not tell you how disappoisting this has become. This is & very impostant — very importan] project
for the eatire Downtown. A3 fr s | know,  there hias been no request for pablic sssisance.  This
finished project would have probably heen appraiscd for neasly $4,000,000. “This project wisild be
prying 0 ot of taxes, employing a ot of people, creating traffic in Downlown — Year Number One 20061

Here is the story that 1 got from the devolopers.

On March 9, the weelkdly upidale mecting wit held st Northfield Construction.  The manager of the

(7) dollars. The expericnce NCC manager thought that was very strange hecause this was » redave bpins
peroject and the property had beon paying sach fees as part of the real estae tres for 100 years] “Within
few bours of the mecting"s cud, NCC had been called by Dan Olson tn sy ~ 1 made a mistake on the
Park Dedication Foe. 1t will be 524,500 "  Because it wan such 8 mnremonable number, gveryone thoughi
thers pbvioushy wes & mistake. As it turned out — that amount jumped 10 32554497 A aumber ne one
cvem knew abowt sl the packens were diseribuied sometime on Friday! Wt are the Develapers or
amponr else ruppose fo do about & then?

This s a MESS!

Firstofadl, even year StafY muss think that there is something unosusl with the Resolution. | have never
scen sy refioronce (0 8 doltr sbost for Pari Dedication for a minor subdivision befode. It certainly st
b seencthing your Staff wantcd to make o “public mabies™ = Wy woubd that happen if they did not think
phat there whd soimeting stranpe sk e fees?

Secondly, mHMm-WﬁMMﬁm[ﬁ:ﬂM@ﬂﬂhhlhﬂm
hew i the workd did Staff come up with that number? Al the very most it would not lave been neasly that
much.  Section 34-709 calls fo & formula based on the “fair market valoe of the lad™.  The bots were
recently sppraised by professional sppraiser, the combined appraial of the land was $171,000.  Five

Hiad amyome even dresmed that this would have been an jssue,  the npprazsals could bave been provided.

The sppraisal have only recenaly been done.  Even ot that, the Sl cerainty shoubd know that the value
of the land {aboui 17,000 noquaene feet) woubd not be worth well over Half a Million Dollars. That is mare
that $30/square foot! Whist is your Seofl thinking?

M what & suppose ko happen?

If the Caumeil waves the reguirement (which it showld and moat likedy would for any ether Developer
according to Section $4-TOT} that will ook very bad for the Mayar and the profece. —

If the Staff reconsiders the amouni, wccording to Code, the amount will drop by 23nds. That will
Ivak very bad for the Mayar and profect

I notking changes the project will not go forsard

What are your ideas?  This is o Sinff blunder,  This & pot @ Develaper's blunder., I have o bdiea
what to do abous this mexs.  We betier fipure something oaf FAST.
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According to Roder; “[Sitaff had interpreted the park dedication fee to be, |
believe it says here 57,500 dollars. They wenlt back and they reviewed il, and
they decided it should be $24_500. Mayor Lansing was very upset about that,
Um, he came into my office. He met with me, very agitated about it. | did receive
this memo..." (Roder Intv. at 17) Roder related, “clearly there was a lot of
pressure from the mayor” to reduce the fee. Roder states, however, he would
have reached the same conclusion even in the absence of such pressure.

(Roder Intv. at 18)

Mayor Lansing acknowledges he spoke with Roder about the park dedication

fee:

Everatl:

Lansing:

Evereff:

Lansing:

Eveareli.

Lansing:

Okay. Alright. Mr. Roder indicales Lee and I'm just gonna
put this on the table <

Put it on the table Bill.

- and just ask you [to] respond. Mr. Roder indicates that he
falt like he was under a fair amount of pressure from you lo
find a way to get those fees reduced. He said that there
were discussions about it and ah between you and him and
you were somewhat um | don't know if consistent [insistent]
is the right word. But um very concemned about the issue.

Well | was concemed about the issue obviously because we
didn't want to see a downtown project be a not — you known
not the enthusiasm to carry that project forward. Sure. And
frankly it seemed to me and not o me necessarily 10 me, but
it seemed 1o ofhers who have had more experience with that
that it seemed a very awkward and unusual that these fees
would have been charged to the project to start with. Let
alane escalate two and threa times before it came 1o the
council. For no apparent reason.

Okay.
So |, | thought that there was a mistake. And | thought that

kind of a mistake should have been dealt with sure. | mean
there has to be some justification for charging fees.

(Lansing Intv. at 27-28)
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Mayor Lansing admitted he acted in his official capacity when he wrote to Roder
concerning the park dedication fees:

Everett: Okay. Lee help me understand when you wrote to Al Roder
and mel with Al Roder what hat were you wearing?

Lansing: What hat was | wearing? | was wearing an informed mayor's
hal. The same hat thal | would wear for anyone else thal
had a complaint about their fees. Or any other thing having
lo do with the city. It just happened thal David and Paul and
| attended meetings where this question came up. Ah
otherwise quite frankly | don't think any of those folks
including most of the city council would have had any idea
what, whether there should be fees charged or what the,
what the basis of those fees would be.

{Lansing Intv. at 29)

Roder met with O'Connell after his discussions with Mayor Lansing. According lo
Roder, they discussed the park dedication fee: “[M]ost of it is in the
interpretation, And when | interpreted the ordinance, |, | saw it differently than
what community development did.” (Roder Intv. at 17) "When Mr. O'Connell and
| finished our discussion aboul the interpretation of the, the park dedication fee it
was reduced significantly.” (Roder Intv. al 17)

According to O'Connell: “that's one instance of several where it just seamed to
me that Al [Roder] was under pressure. | mean, o cul 1o the chase, um, | was a
little unsettled by Al's approach to things where he seemed to be conducting this
business primarily at the behest of the mayor as opposed lo he Council.”
(O'Connell Intv. at 9)

O'Connell indicated his staff used the recent purchase prices of David Lansing's
property and Norby's property to establish the value for the park dedication fee
formula. During his discussions with Roder, “instead of using the appralsed
value, or market value, Al suggested that we, that we find some other way of
establishing value, which maybe was assessed value, which would have been,
ya know, considerably less.” (O'Connell Intv. at 13)

O'Connell expressed discomfort over the fee calculation that resulted:
BE: Or did you come 1o consensus?
BO: | think, | would say we came to consensus. Did | agree on having to
do it? Um, iL, it it was kind of like, it was, their kind of asking us to ya know,

find a corner’ 1o go lounge in, 50 no it was not something that was
pleasant to experience because il seemed like we we're trying to find a
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way o give this guy a break. And in the end they didn’t even pay it
anyway.

{O'Connell Intv. at 16) O'Connell indicated the circumstances left a “bad taste in
his mouth,” (O'Connell Intv. al 31)

Mayor Lansing wrote to Roder following their discussions on the park dedication
fee. Mayor Lansing directed the City Administrator to call the developers
regarding the resolution of the fee issue:

Fax o Al Roder

Fax From Lansmg,
Fax Date 372072006
Miznber = (453055

Circat Mecting this moming.....we made 8 jot of progress

Wou will call David Lansing (645-8814) an/or Faul Norby (645-5399) conceming the foes of 600 Division
e Lra-977- 9257

T weald passs that you have bit upoo the izspe.  Staff probably used the “purchase price” of the properties.
This, or course, hes pearly nothing to do with the sppraised value of the lind.  The dictate and the
fommaula are in the Charrer,

Ti really diocs Rok mazier 8o the Tormuels if e property sold for a pickel. 17 il wers appraissd for 54, that
wransid] be e hasis,

The video recording of the March 20, 2007 City Council meeting reveals Mayor
Lansing excusad himself from the discussion because of the potential for a
“perceived” conflict of interest. Mayor Lansing did nol disclose his involvement
with staff in securing a reduction in the amount of the park dedication fee.

Roder appeared before the City Council and presented information regarding the
proposed minor subdivision. He informed them the park dedication fee of
$25,544.97 was "erronecus.” He stated that after further discussions with staff
and review of the code, the correct amount should be $4,900. Roder indicated
the issue was one of interpretation of the ordinance. He indicated the formula
called for five percent of the land value, and the mistake occurred when
calculations included the value of the buildings. The Council approved the minor
subdivision with the 54,900 fee.
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Staff updated the March 8, 2006 file memo to reflect the Council action taken on
March 20, 20086.

Update:

At the March 20, 2006 City Council meenng, the Council reduced the park dedication fee
requirement to $4,900 since the property is considered a redevelopment. Based on a
value of the two parcels of land per the Rice County Assessor, the following is a value of
the Innd {minus buildings);

e 107 6" Swreer West = 349,000
G0 Division Street - 540,000

Total value of combined parcel is 598,000 The value of the lind is therefore
$5.98/sqare fool.

Multiple $5.98 x 819.8 = 5490240

The Ehlers Report — September 2006

Ehlers and Associates is an independent financial advisory firm providing
services to public sector clients. Roder suggested having Ehlers perform an
analysis that the Council could use in reaching a decision on the liquor store.
{Roder Intv. al 27) Ehlers evaluated six sites:

B00 Division

Q Block

EconoFoods

6518 Division

Expanded VW (existing site)
Expanded WE&E (existing sile)

2 0

o o0 0

Ehlers prepared two sels of interim analysis and a third analysis on September
20, 2006. The developers of 600 Division Street were, at this time, offering the
City a lease with an option to purchase the property.

The Ehlers analysis dated September 29, 2006 considered the property al 600
Division Street under two separale scenarios:

= A lease for 19,000 square feet.”

o A purchase of 10,0000 square feet in the building.

* Mayor Lansing indicates this was an error in the report becausa it would make no sense for the
City to bease this amount of spaca for a 10,000 square foot liquor sione
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The Ehlers analysis consisted of a set of several worksheels, one for each
property/option, along with a cover page summarizing the results. This page
compared the various properties, bul did not include the purchase oplion for 600
Division Street; it presented only the lease option. It ranked 600 Division Street
as providing the lowest financial retumn of any of the considered options.

According lo Rader, he and Mayor Lansing had two or three meetings aboul the
Ehlers report. (Roder Intv. at 27). Mayor Lansing seemed “very agitated” with
thi report. He thought the information was skewed. They had “very heated"
discussions. (Roder Intv. at 27) The following is an excerpt conceming the
report from a memo by Mayor Lansing to Roder:

1 do ol think that you were ready to review the Ehlers report. I you were, it is very easy 1o sce whata
poor report this is.  As 8 matter of fact, it is 50 much worss than POOR. | do not know bow to describe
in.

When you are ready, | would be happy to share my work with this report. 11 you are not interested in my
mpul, that is alright too.

Y oar questions today....wene as oul of place. | am over that, Bt please, do not change the rales ofthe |
game.  The parteers carefully noted exsctly what your Stalf asked and what Eblers sked.  We did
exactly what was asked of .

If I were you, | would keep the lid tightly closed on this report usti] you better understand the content.

a very challenging review,
kv if | can be of belp.
AN

Motably in the memo, Mayor Lansing wrote: “The partners carefully noted
exacily what your Staff asked and what Ehlers asked. We did exactly whal was
asked of us” (Emphasis added) ;

According 1o Roder, Mayor Lansing “made him promise” not 1o show the report 1o
anyone until the two of them reviewed il. "] believe the Mayor was saying very
explicitly this doesn’t go anywhere until | say itcan.” (Roder Intv. at 28-28)

Page 23



Mayor Lansing admits he directed Roder not to show the Ehlers report 1o
anyons. Mayor Lansing states he did so because of the poor quality of the

report.

Everelt: Okay. Um. Did you share any thoughts about that study
with Mr. Roder?

| ansing: Sure.

Everett: W, whal did you share with him?

Lansing. | thought it was inaccurate. And um nol, nol correct.

Evereil. Okay.

Lansing: Mm hmm.

Everett: Did you give him any instructions as to what he should do
with the study?

Lansing: | thought it would be, | thought it would be ah an

embarrassment in a sense. If it were, if it were nol accurate
and not complete and not in keeping with good business
standards for it to be released. | would think that the city
would not want this to be made a public document if it was
not correct. And | told him to keep the lid on it until he had it,
till he had it checked out. That's what | would have done.

(Lansing Intv. at 34)
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Initiation of McComb Study — October 2006

Following the Ehlers report, Mayor Lansing suggested retaining a different
consultant to perform a study:

Memoio: Al Koder Confidential
Memo from:  Lassing

Memo date: 107372006

Memo subject:  Various

Ligwor Store Review

After speaking with otber Council members, the manoer in which to proceed with this project
wems very clear,

1. The Perkins Study can be wsed io help identify various parameters for site selection

2. The Financial Proforma should be domse by s independant firm, mot currenaly
associnted with the City of Morthikeld

3. Site selection will be done with the psaisiance of an mdependent finm, ol currently
mssociated with the City of Morthfield

The: Stall will support requests for data, bot will not be part of preparing the report. The dats
will be only emparical information taken from exiting records.

The Mayor i very sensitive io the sppearance of amy conflict of inferesd Bases.  The Mayor s
wery sensstive ko the sced to be trealed iotally objective in this masner,

Thee next step is 1o select an unbiased sdvisor io thizend. | will pather candidaies, the
Adpnistrator will do the same,  The Council's. criteria, poals ansd objoctives, will be prenvided 1o the
candidsie

Teme s of the exsence.

¥ ou had promised (o provide the source: of the infiemation wed to penembe (e financial dsia
cumently being wwed 1o cxaming oporation of ibe Morthfickd Liguor Siore,  This request was made aficr
there sppeaned 1o be concemns that all candidates had pot been tressed fGirky in this instial review.
Secondly, withow reliable and complete information, the cntlre project cmi be jeopardized. | still am in
hopes ihe souree of this mformation can be identified.

Roder suggested retaining the International City/County Management
Association to perform the study. (Roder Intv, at 30-31). Mayor Lansing
developed a list of four consultants and provided the list to Roder in wnling.

The Cily engaged the McComb Group, one of the firms Mayor Lansing had
suggested. On November 27, 2006, Mayor Lansing met with Bill Gorton of the
MeComb Group and provided him with materials he believed McComb would
need lo perform the study® (Source: Lansing memo to Gorton, Nov. 28, 2006)
Mayor Lansing included the Ehlers report among these malerials. Mayor
Lansing indicated he took on the lask of meeting with Gorton and delivering the
materials because Roder was unavailable. (Lansing Intv. at 47)

" Mayor Lansing later wrote to Roder indicating the McComb Group was “purposely” pol provided
all of the work already done on the quor store project. See memo reproduced below at 27
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Gorton indicated that Mayor Lansing was “very up front that his son owned 600
Division” and Lansing was worrnied about perceplions. Mayor Lansing
emphasized to Gorton he wanted McComb to conduct an independent analysis.
As related by Gorton, Mayor Lansing expressed concem regarding some of the
inconsistencies in the Ehlers report. Gorton thought Mayor Lansing “wanted
someone oulside and objective lo review Ehlers’ report so he wouldn't be the one
jumping up and down.”

Results of McComb study—January 2007

The McComb report did in fact criticize the methodology used in earlier reports,
including the analysis prepared by Ehlers.” The report did not per se recommend
proceeding with 600 Division or with any other site,

Rather, the McComb Group questioned the City's basic premise that it needed a
10,000 square foot liquor store. McComb recommended developing a more
tharough understanding of the markat and then designing and building a new
store tailored to the market, McComb cautioned that "[wlithout careful re-
evaluation of the proposed new liquor store, there is a strong likelihood that
instead of providing additional revenue to the city, the new store could result in
substantially reduced revenues.” (Source: McComb Report al 37) It continued:

“If done properly however, the city may be able to achieve its goal of
further supplementing tax and fee revenues. This may require further
study:

1. To more accurately assess the area’s potential and the sales thal a
new Morthfield Liquor store could capture.

2. To generale income and expense forecasts in a more accurale and
comprehensive manner to determine the total project cosls that can
be supported by estimated cash flows.

3. To establish realistic design criteria and economic costs associated
with leasing, acquiring and developing the various site altematives
that are consistent with established financial paramelers.

Once completed, the city will have determined the development
strategy that would provide the bes! revenue contribution o best meet
the needs of the community.”

(Source: Report at 37-38)

" wWile critical of ENlars’ methodalogy, Gorlon wasn't critical of their work per se. Ehlars
performad an economic analysis based on daln and assumpbons provided to the fiem, Goron's
firm provices a ditferent sarvice; it conducts and uses markel research 1o creale its own data for
daveloping an economic analysis.
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In a memo to Roder, Mayor Lansing expressed disagreement with Mcl_:umh's
conclusion as o the necessity of more study. Mayor Lansing closad his memo
by advocating 600 Division Street was the best location for the liquor store, and
noted that the "600 Division Location is ready to go and could actually happen
oW,

The Conslasions mnd Recommendaricon

Wi Sty Wlore Review

T e this bs scevewhal & mized message.  What it el the reader, “that thern by e work 1o be dose”
mmmmumawhmmmmﬂmm
and eleeted officiab 1 think fhut & kot of tee “blanks” beve boen filled in slready

To e, the message ia "do mone work® = tut § thisk most of the wesk b already been dons.

Ihunﬁrmmhhnth;hm-hh—hhhﬁuﬁnwmm thes fx

willl pever happes, Thee cnby thing thay all o Sis resesrch cam really provide b the information sesded i
make this decizion —

Wiz atill have ta do ie?

The Sesdy’s Observatioes

Much of wisal we bave already talled shout was confinsed i tis roport. 1 skl priseus. et abuusld]
Ehurmys b the e if we bave reslly dooe our boenewarl

Cieneml Chmervations Boay beCanl
1. There b poscotial for Esressed sales, buminoms
L The carrent som s nol cifickent
X The Council"s pualy smd objectives ane best sorved try 600 Division or EcosaFoads. Lot
4, There b not s grot deal of differeace in amy of tee shes I
¥ The Eler's mpor was thought 1o have pol bees very scourate
6 The Perkio Sty was thought 1o have been oo narrovw in i scope, oo sppresive

In identifiying the trade mres and market potersis]

I s oy v belinf S the MeComb proup dos nol haive i groal deal of confidencs in the Ciny's
sbiléry 1o manage & Municipal Liquor Ssons &0 it potential

If the Admisistrasor belicves the that the managament talent and toolt arc in place - i the lewt, 10
sceamplich most of s marketing goabi and objoctives — then the City sbould qetcidy move shrad I

Laraing’s Obeervations Bom e Moo

1. The indomaiion thal MeCoenb had boes given would pot provide s grest deal of coalldence
i e ity ability & plan and manage o new liguor sore — 1 think thet wiih de
defictad sffont and expertise thas shumbd by spplied o theis project we could do well.

1 The City mad be someshal *rbk sdverse’ — it sorms best, | the sheort run, 1 be sensilive
e e Cimamsciail risk oo the City — thiore s ways in which thin risk cam be spread hetween
developer, owner amd

1. That 600 Division is the best locstion for the Municipal Liguor Stors given: |
u. e Goaky sed Cljectives of the Coamcil
b the Gealy and Cbjectaves of the Comprebomsive M
¢ S and Ojectives of the Comgerhomsive Econamic Development Plan

The &0 Drvision Lesatess i reacly to g nnd could sctuslly happen now?
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Communications between Mayor Lansing and Roder

Roder began his employment with the City on or aboul February 28, 2006.
According to Roder, Mayor Lansing began lalking to him aboul the liquor store
almost immediately. (Roder Inly. at 12) A memo from Mayor Lansing to Roder
dated March 6, 2006 stated the liquor store was a “huge issue for Norhfield,” and
indicated that Mayor Lansing could be “of significant help to staff in getting this
project on track.”

The following are excerpts from Mr. Roder's interview:

“This [liquor store project] was something that had to move forward
and, and there would be rewards if this moved forward, and this
was going to be {inaudible} a statement that, thal we were going to
make in the community, but this had to be, and this was our, our
statement project. This had to happen, and it had 1o happen soon.
Beginning in March this project could never happen fast enough.”
(Roder Intv. at 22)

“The mayor never left any doubt in my mind that, ya know, not only
my, my rewards, my financial rewards in the city, and my tenure
with the city, but the, ya know, my stature with the city was always
going 1o be tied to the liquar store. And, and the success of the
liquor store project.” (Roder Intv, at 22)

L] - - . -

“Ah, generally in our meetings, or our conversations it had to do
with um, we'd always start with a topic not related to the liquor store
and during the course of our meeting we would evolve into a fiquor
store conversation, and ah, inevitably we would move into a
conversation about either my review, or my compensation, or the
city's pay plan, or where | was at on the pay plan, and um,
everything, everything seemed lo revolve back into that in one way
or another.” (Roder Intv. at 22)°

¥ Roder indicated documents existed to confirm Mayor Lansing had linked discussions about the
fiquor siore 1o discussions aboul Roder's pay. A May 4, 2007 cover memo from Mayor Lansing Lo
Roder suggesiad postponing 8 closed meeting previously scheduled 1o discuss the liguor slore
Attachments discussed the Mayor's suggestions for the process the Council 5h|:u$d follow in
making a decision on the liquor store project. Mayor Lansing concluded v:ﬂlh, | could usa the
clonsed session 1o finish your performance review and salary examination.
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“It was always couched in a way thal we have to get a new liquor
siore, Ah, inevitably we talked about ah, at 600 Division and how it
would stack up against any place else in town, ah, | had, | had a lot
of coaching on why 600 Division is the best and the pro’s and
con's, um, as we moved into 2006, or the later part of 2006, and
early 2007, um, much more so to the paint where it would only
make sense o lease this property and, and when | brought up the
concepl of the city might want to own the property. Because I'm not
a big fan of municipal leasing, um, it was always about well we
need to be looking at a lease because ils lower risk, and there's
always advantages o leasing. Um, very much | felt like it was being
pigeon holed into the city is going to lease a new development at
600 Division for a period of three lo five years, maybe ten years,
and then buy it out at the end of the lease. Ah, there really was no
inleresl in purchasing or ya know selling the property to the city,
um, al lease purchase would be considered, bul again il ied back
into a lease and that really was ah, what we were being pigeon
holed into very quickly.” (Roder Intv. al 23)

Council selection of preferred location — March 5, 2007

At the March 5, 2007 Council meeting, the Council selected 600 Division Street
as its preferred site for a liquor store and authorized staff to begin negatiations
with the owners of the properly. Prior to the discussion, Mayor Lansing
announced he would not paricipale in the discussion to avoid any appearance of
a conflict of interest. (Sources: Council Minutes, video recording of meeting)

Events ocourring prior to the Council meeting mernt examination. The following
relates a summary of events and communications leading up to the Council
meeting of March 5, 2007.

Director McBride's report: City Finance Director Kathleen McBride worked on
reports for the City Council about the liquor store project. She leamed through
discussions with Roder that Mayor Lansing wanted lo talk to her. According lo
McBride, Roder indicated he had acted as a buffer between the Mayor and staff.
McBride volunteared 1o talk to the Mayor about the project. Roder told her “it's
your reporl, don't change it.” (Source: Kathleen McBride)

McBride described the meeting she had with Mayor Lansing. Lansing came 1o
her office with “his numbers™ and looked over her shoulder as she worked on the
report. McBride had conducted research on lease paymenis. In the report she
was preparing, McBride projected an annual lease payment of $224,000 for 600
Division Street. Mayor Lansing told her the lease payments seemed too high.
He thought they should be $200,000. McBride replied by saying "l like my lease
payment numbers,” McBride thought Mayor Lansing tried to make sure that

Paga &4



leasing appeared as the best option for the city. Mayor Lansing let the matter
drop,

Mayor Lansing's efforts to change information going to the City Council:
Mayor Lansing provided Roder with a senes of documents on March 5, 2007
prior to the City Council meeting. The first was a letter from Lee Lansing as
“Mayor” urging the Administrator, Finance Director, and Liquor Store Manager to

be prepared o address any questions that might arise from the public or the
Council,

The second was a memo to dated March 5, 2007, commenting on McBride's
report. Il stales in part:

“The report does nol address that 600 Division Street has provided
the opportunity for the City to Purchase - Lease - Lease with
Option to Purchase. (Draft Agreement has been prepared and
prasented) [sic] This will be an important consideration ® * * * The
Council needs to understand the advantages of each model. It
might be that the City leases, then exercisas (after 3-5 years)
options for purchasing the site. Often times, this occupancy model
iz the best of "all worlds". * * * * Itis likely that the Council, if it
understands, would choose the model to Leasa with an Option to
Purchase. * * * * The property owners will work with the City to
make any ownership model work.”

The memo continues by identifying several poinis concemning real estate tax
implications, depreciation, and principal bond payment.

A third set of documenis Mayor Lansing provided to Roder included a
comparison of the advantages and disadvantages to the City of leasing,
purchasing, or leasing with an option to purchase. A fourth document contained
financial projections for leasing 600 Division Street, contrasting it with City
ownership of the EconoFoods site. This projection showed net cash flow from
leasing 600 Division Street substantially outpaced the cash flow from owing the
EconoFoods site.

Roder indicated he made it clear to Mayor Lansing in the past thal any
documents bearing Mayer Lansing's “fingerprints” would not go to the City
Council. (Roder Intv. at 41) Roder refused to provide the March 5, 2007
documents to the Council. According to Roder, he “lold the Mayor, | can't give
them to the council. | don't think that's appropriate.” (Roder Intv. at 42)

Roder indicated his relationship with Mayor Lansing grew more c-nnlenlh?us after
this event. His refusal to give Mayor Lansing's information to the Council
“seamed 1o be kind of the, the last straw.” {Roder Intv. at 42)

Mayor Lansing became more agitated and upsel with him. {Roder Inlv. at 42-43)
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Mayor Lansing asserts thal Roder was wrong in refusing to put his information
before the Council. Mayor Lansing maintains Roder should have changed the
information going to the Council in response to the information Lansing provided.
In a memo to the investigator, Mayor Lansing wrote:

"Roder knowingly provided Council with inaccurate or incomplete
financial information about this project. Consulting Attornay for the
City of Northfield, advised thal the information had to be accurale
{meaning changed)” Roder refused to do so.”

(Grammalical errors in original)

While not agreeing this was a watershed moment in his relationship with Roder,
Mayor Lansing acknowledged il was a very difficult time and very frustrating for
him. (Lansing Intv. at 119-120)

Justification - advice of counsel: Mayor Lansing justified his afforis to
influence the information going before the Council on March 5, 2007 based on
advice he received from legal counsel. The Campbell, Knutson law firm
periodically provides legal services to the City.

Mayor Lansing stated Roger Knutson of the Campbell, Knutson law firm adwised
him “to make sure this [sic] City Council had the right information, had accurate
and complete information . . . " (Lansing Intv. at 53) Mayor Lansing fumished
the investigator with a copy of the March 5, 2007 letter he faxed to Knutson,
which outlined his concermns,

Mayor Lansing wrote that City staff “metered and managed” information pmﬁ:;ted
to the City Council. The letter made non-specific reference to erronsous data in
the Ehlers report. Mayor Lansing claimed the data intended for the Council that
evening was still incorrect. He wrote: “The complicating matter in all of this 4_5
that my son owns one of the properies being considered for redevelopment.
The letter continued:

“As the information has been prepared for the Council meeling
tonight.....there are two remaining properties up for cnnsu_jﬂmunn.
One property s owned by my son and the other property is across
the sireet. The properties are very similar, Howeaver, by
misrepresenting data and/or providing incomplete data to the
Council — of course, the property owned by my son is “just not as
good™! **** As a matter of accounting fact - the property owned
by my son is much better! Developing a new mym‘;ipal liquor store
on that sight meets all the Stated Goals and Objectives of the
Council. This is easy o see and understand.”
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(Grammatical errors in original)

Knutson recalled receiving a fax from Mayor Lansing, However, Knutson had a
substantially different recollection of the advice he provided, Knutson offered "no
opinions” to Mayor Lansing with regard to the numbers Mayor Lansing spoke
about. Knutson recalled he advised Mayor Lansing he could, in his capacity as a
private citizen, speak to the Council and explain why the numbers in the staff
report were wrong. Knutson advised Mayor Lansing he could:

o Go up o the pedium during the Council meeting and addrass the City
Council.

o Have his son go o the podium and address the City Council.

o Act as a private citizen, but could not act as the Mayor.

Justification — need for accurate information outweighs conflict
fssues: The investigator questioned Mayor Lansing whether he engaged
in conflicting behaviors with regard to the March 5, 2007 Council meeting,
Particularly, the investigator asked Mayor Lansing why he recused himsell
from public participation, but still remained involved in behind-the-scenes
discussions with staff intended to influence the outcome of the sile
seleclion process.

Everelt: For the publicly. You know you're not going to be at that
meeling, you'ra going to recuse yoursell to avoid this
appearance of a conflict of interest.

Lansing: Um hmm.

Everett: So that sort of implies you're gonna be taking a hands-off
approach —

Lansing: No it does nol.

Everalf: And let the council do their job.

Lansing: Mo, that does not, in my mind that does not, that's not what it
implies at all. The, the, the, the —

Everatt: The stop -

Lansing: Yep.
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Everett: So in your mind, you can go ahead and feed information into
Mr. Roder behind the scenes and that's not a conflict, but if
you sit at the table thal's a perceived conflict?

Lansing: The, the responsibility for making community decisions is
based on facls and accurale and timely information. When
the facts are not consisient with - | mean when the, when
the facts are not facls or the information is not timely or the
information Is not complete, that's a, thal's, thal’s an issue
and | believe that the Mayor or the city council or the finance
director or anyone else has that responsibility to get
accurate, complele, and total information to the council. You
know you should be looking at some of these others when |
said, “Al, all the council needs is all the information, 100% of
the information, accurate information and in a timely
mannar,” They're grown up, they can make their own
decision but they can't make good decisions based on bad
information. Now why is my information any better than
Kathleen McBride's or Ehler's? Right isn't that a good
question?

(Lansing Intv. 56-57)
Mayor Lansing’s role in negotiations with the City

Al their meeting on March 5, 2007, the City Council ultimately selected 600
Division Street as the preferred site for the new liquor store. The Council
authorized siaff to enter into negotiations with the property owners. The City
retained Frauenshuh Companies to negotiale on its behalf. John Donnelly from
Frauenshuh represented tha City.

Donnally met twice with the developers. Ray Cox, David Lansing, Paul Norby,
and Mayor Lansing attended both meetings. Donnelly explained he used the first
meeting to oblain an introduction to the project. In the second meeting, ha
analyzed the options of a condominium purchase or purchase of the entire

projecl.

Donnelly indicated Mayor Lansing “acted as a developer” al the meetings. Mayor
Lansing spoke to the details of the development, including size, parking, and
“avolution” of the acquisition of 600 Division Street. Donnelly observed Mayor
Lansing tried very hard to make sure the answers David Lansing or Norby
provided were in accordance with his own thoughts. _Dmne!tg.r pl'r.'del:_I saveral
examples where he directed questions to David Lansing and Lee Lansing

answered them on his son's behalf. Donnelly indicaled "Lee was the mosl
knowledgeable member of the developers group.” Mayor Lansing explained 1o
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Donnelly he attended the mealings as David's dad, and would abstain from City
Council meetings conceming the project

Mayor Lansing confirmed he allended the negotiation sessions. He described
his role as a "menlor” to his son and Norby. (Lansing Intv. at 44) Mayor Lansing

indicated he helped his son and Norby write letters to Donnelly about the project.
{Lansing Intv. at 16)

Mayor Lansing indicated he discussed his role with the City Attorney. (Lansing
Intv. at 44-45) City Attorney Maren Swanson wrote to Mayor Lansing on May 29,

2007,

L=,

o

[+]

In her lefler, she advised:;

“In talking with staff and council members, it appears thal you may be
offering information or urging that certain actions be taken or timelines be
followed, and that this may be happening, at least al times, in your
capacity as mayor.”

*| appreciate that you have decided to abstain from discussion and
decision-making on this matter as a member of the council, because of
your personal (familial, not financial) interest in the major site under
consideration. Even though you do not have a financial interest in the
project, | agree thal the ethics ordinance requires you o abstain from
discussion and voling on matters related lo iL"

“[Ylou should also abstain from trying lo influence, or from appearing to try
to influence, the actions of the city or the decision of the council behind the
scenes, through contacts with city staff, individual council members, or
consultants o the city.”

That he should "adopt a *hands off’ policy with regard to how the city
handles the relocation effort.”

*Communicate with city staff and council members Elh-put the subject only
at public meetings or in open (public) writlen communications and_clﬂady
state thal you are speaking as a privale person and not as mayor.

“[M}ake it clear when you communicale with the city's property
development specialist or other consultants thal you are speaking as a
private person and not as mayor . .. .

FINDINGS OF FACT

Joseph Lee Lansing (“Lee Lansing”) began his term of office of Mayor of
the City of Northfield in January, 2005.
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10.

11.

12,

On or about April 5, 2005, Lee Lansing, acting as a trustee for the Lansing
Family Trust, entered into a purchase agreement to acquire the property
at 600 Division Streel,

Lee Lansing was the sole owner of Lansing Enterprises, Inc. Lansing

Enterprises paid $9,000 in eamest maney loward the purchase of the
property at 600 Division Stresl.

The Lansing Family Trusl assigned its interes! in the purchase agreement
for 600 Division Street to Mayor Lansing's son and daughter-in-law, David
and Heidi Lansing.

David and Heidi Lansing closed on the purchase of this property in
October, 2005.

Lee Lansing met with the Tires Plus tenants who had been leasing the
space al 600 Division Street from its former owner. Mayor Lansing held
the meeting in his office at City Hall in October, 2005. Mayor Lansing
informed the Tires Plus tenants they would eventually need to vacate the
property.

Lea Lansing received checks from Tires Plus for their rental of the
property at 600 Division Street from November, 2005 through March 28,
2006. DHJJ, Inc. deposited all but one of these checks into its account.

Paul Norby leamed that having the liquor store as a lenant in the building
they planned to construct would be advantageous for the development

project.

Norby and David Lansing proposed a minor subdivision thai would allow
them to combine the adjacent properties they owned.

Mayor Lansing publicly recused himself from City Council meetings
dealing with his son’s development project, but remained involved with
City staff behind the scenes to secure advantages for and advocate for his
son's development project.

City staff calculated the park dedication fee for the proposed minor
subdivision lo be $25,544.97.

The proposed park dedication fee upset Mayor Lansing. Prior to the

March 20, 2006 Council meeting, Mayor Lansing E:I-:ertErs:E substantial
pressure on Administrator Roder to obtain a reduction in the fee.
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13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

18.

At their March 20, 2006 meeting, Roder informed the City Council the
$25,544.97 fee was an error. He indicated the correct fee should be
$4,900. The Council approved the minor subdivision with a fee of $4,800.

The summary page of the Ehlers analysis, delivered to the City on or
aboul September 29, 2008, indicated the site al 500 Division Streat
delivered the lowesl economic return of any of the siles under
consideration,

Mayor Lansing issued verbal and written directives to Roder to make sure
no one elsa saw the Ehlers analysis,

Mayor Lansing direcled a new study of the liguor slore site oplions. Mayor
Lansing met in person with the firm selecled lo conduct the study.

The City Council discussed the site selection for the liquor store on March
5, 2007. Prior to the meeting, Mayor Lansing provided several documents
to Roder. Mayor Lansing became upsal when Roder refused lo provide
the documents to the City Council,

Mayor Lansing assisted in preparing letters and proposals on behalf of the
developer, some sent to the City and others lo Dannelly.

Mayor Lansing assumed a prominent role in conducting negotiations for
the sale or lease of 600 Division Street on behalf of his son and Norby.

GOVERNING STANDARDS

The Mayor, Council members, and City Administrator are “public officials” for
purposes of the Northfield Code of Ethics. Northfield City Code, section 2-121.
Section 2-126 provides: “No public official shall grant any special consideration,
treatment, or advantage to any resident beyond that which is available to every
resident.”

Sec. 2-127 of the Code governs conflicts of interest. It provides:

(a) Personal financial inferest in sale, lease or mm'm:;! with city.
Any public official who has a personal financial interest in any sale,
lease, or confract with the city shall make such interesi Iknuwn lo
the city council and shall be bound by state law in determining hiow
1o resolve such a confiict of interest.

(b) Other conflicts. Any public official who engages in any business or
transaction or has a financial or other personal interest, direct or indirect,
including an interes! arising from blood, adurpliva._nr_m:arﬂagl-.a ; _
relationships or close business or personal associalions, which interest is
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incompatible with the proper discharge of his/her official duties in the
public interest or would tend to impair his/her independence of judgment
or action in the performance of official duties, shall disclose the nature of
such activity or interest and shall disqualify himselfiherself from discussion
and voting, provided that such member shall be allowed to participate in
discussion as a member of the public. Disqualification is not called for,
however, if discussion and action by a public official will not affect him/her
more than any other meamber of the same group, neighborhood, business
classification, profession, or occupation.

CONCLUSIONS

| H The evidence does nol support the conclusion Mayor Lansing had a
personal financial interast in the development known as 600 Division
otreet.

2. The evidence indicates Mayor Lansing had an interest arising by bliood
(familial interest) in the developmen! known as 600 Division Streel. This
interest was incompalible with the proper discharge of his official duties in
the public interest. Mayor Lansing used his position as Mayor to influence
City actions and decisions pertaining to the development project known as
600 on Division Street.

3. Mayor Lansing's conduct provided special consideration, treatment, or
advantage to residents [Paul Norby and his son] beyond that which is
available 10 every resident.

ANALYSIS

Much of the evidence in this matter is undisputed. Documents authored by
Mayor Lansing and his own admissions confirm he engaged in many of the
behaviors described in the Findings of Facl. Mayor Lansing responds to these
circumstances in large part by claiming he did not have a conflict of interest or by
otherwise attempting to justify his actions. Mayor Lansing's claim he did nol
have a conflict of interest s irmeconcilable with his behaviors. He recused himself
fram City Council meetings whenever discussions involved h!s an_sn's
development project. He claims he did this to avoid a pamar.red conflict of
interest. Yel while being careful to avoid a perceived conflict of interest when in
the public eye, the evidence reveals he worked extensively behind the SCenes o
cause the new municipal liquor store to became a tenant of the building his son
proposed lo build,

As discussed below, the Investigator rejects Mayor Lansing's justification of his
behind-the-scenes involvement, The irrefutable evidence establishes Mayor
Lansing exerted official influence on matters peraining to H_wue 600 Division Street
development project. Mayor Lansing indicales he exerted influence 1o comect
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efrors, prevenl inaccurale information from being made public, and tried to make
sure information going before the Council was accurate. Yet these purported
justifications have no bearing on the conflict of interest analysis. Mayor Lansing
had an interest 6500 Division Strest development arising by blood. The Ethics
Ordinance required him to disclose this interest. It allowed him to speak as a
private person on these mallers but to refrain from laking action in his capacity
as Mayor. The evidence clearly demonstrates Mayor Lansing used his pasition
as Mayor to provide advantages for his son's development project and to have it
emerge as the new location for the liquor store.

No Personal Financial Interest

The evidence does not support the conclusion Mayor Lansing had a direct
financial interest in any lease or contract that may have resulted between the City
and the developers of 600 Division Streel. It is dlear Mayor Lansing had, al one
time, an interest in the proparty itself. In his capacity as trustee for tha Lansing
Family Trust, Mayor Lansing enlered inlo a purchase agreament for the propearty
at 600 Division Street in April, 2005. He paid $9,000 in eamest money using
funds from Lansing Enterprises, Inc., a corporation he alone controlled.

By Seplember of 2005, the City alerted Mayor Lansing to the potential for conflict
of interest Issues. This notice came in the form of discussions concermning not
500 Division Streel, but the property al 618 Division Streel, In view of the
Mayor's financial interest in that property, City Attomey Swanson wrole (o
another municipal attorney on September 1, 2005 to inquire whether a conflict of
imerest would exist if the City purchased or leased 618 Division Streel. Swanson
provided a copy of this letter to Mayor Lansing.

Mayor Lansing assigned the interest held by the Lansing Family Trust in the
purchase agreement for 600 Division Street to his son and daughter-in-law,
David and Heidi Lansing. David and Heidi Lansing closed on the purchase of
600 Division Streat on Oclober 3, 2005. A careful review of the lransaction
discloses David Lansing's source of cash at closing originated with Paul Norby.
Mayor Lansing indicated the eamest money Lansing Enterprises, Inc. paid
toward the purchase of the property at 600 Division Street became a loan to
David and Heidi Lansing. Mayor Lansing indicates DHJJ, Inc. fully repaid the
loan in November, 2005, Mo evidence exists to refute that asserion.

Mayor Lansing received rent checks from the operators of Tires Plus. The last of
these checks bears the date March 28, 2006. Mayor Lansing indicates, however,
he tumed these rent checks over 1o his son's business, DHJJ, Inc. Documentary
avidence supperts this assertion except as to one of lh-a :::h_achs. As o t_hﬂ menh
in question, there is no evidence lo support the conclusion it was deposited into
an account over which Lee Lansing exercised control.
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The evidence does not support the conclusion Mayor Lansing had a personal,
financial interest in the 600 Division Street development project. The evidence
fails to demonstrate Mayor Lansing would have enjoyed a personal, financial
gain had the project gone forward.

Mayor Lansing's affiliation with the development project

Mayor Lansing allowed the operalors of Tires Plus to perceive him as the awner
of the property at 800 Division Street after his son purchased it. Mayor Lansing
met with them in Cctober, 2005. Mayor Lansing showed the Tires Plus operators

plans to develop that site. He told Tires Plus they would eventually need to
relocate their business.

Mayor Lansing accepted rent checks from Tires Plus withoul protest or informing
them the checks should be made payable o someone else. The first time the
operators of Tires Plus learmed Mayor Lansing's son had an interest in the
property was when they received a March 28, 2006 letter from David Lansing
telling them they had to move oul This letter was dated eight days after the City

had approved the minor subdivision for the proposed development project at 600
Division Sireel.

Mayor Lansing's interactions with the oparators of Tires Flus demonstrated he
had an affiliation with the development project from the same approximata tima
that his son purchased the property. Mayor Lansing provided no offsetting
justification for why he allowed this parception o persist.

Interest arising by blood

The evidence establishes Mayor Lansing had an interest in the project at 600
Division Street, arising from blood, which was incompatible with his duties as
Mayor. There were two developers for the project at 600 Division Street. COne
was Morby, The other was Mayor Lansing's son, David. Mayor Lansing’s son
stood to benefit with the success of the projecl.

Mayor Lansing indicated he acted as an advisor and father when helping his son
with the development project. Mayor Lansing's conduct demonstrates a desire 1o
see his son achieve success maotivated him to action. The evidence astablishes
Mayor Lansing as an active participant in helping bringing the development 1o
fruition. He admits he attended meetings with his san, Norby, and Cax, once or
twice a week, lo work on the project. Mayor Lansing admits he_e helped prepare
comespondence for “the developers” (i.e., his son and MNorby), including
comespondence o the City and Donnelly, concemning the project. As .
negoliations began with the City, Mayor Lansing took a prominent ml_a in
speaking on behalfl of the developers. He attended both meelings with Dannelly,
who described the Mayor as the one who was most knowledgeable about the
development project.
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In his reachion to the Ehlers study, Mayor Lansing wrote to Roder: “The pariners
carefully noted exaclly what your Staff asked and what Ehlers asked. We did
exactly whal was asked of us.” (Emphasis added) Mayor Lansing's choice of
words reflected reality; he was functioning as part of the team, expending
considerable energy. 1o make the 600 Division Street development project a
success. The evidence overwhelmingly demonstrates Mayor Lansing had a
familial interest in the 800 Division Street development project.

Exercise of official influence

The Norhfield Code of Ethics provides that when a public official has a conflict of
interest, that official must disclose the interest but may participate in discussions
as a member of the public. Mayor Lansing engaged in conduct that wanl well
beyond speaking as a member of the public. He used his position as Mayor 10
work behind the scenes and secure advantages and favorable treatment for his
son's development project.

Reduction in park dedication fee: Mayor Lansing's son and Paul Norby
propased a minor subdivision to be known as Six Hundred on Division. This
matter appeared on the agenda for the regular City Council meeting scheduled
for March 20, 2008.

A March 8, 2006 file note by city staff established the park dedication fee for this
minor subdivision at over $25,000. The evidence demonstrates Mayor Lansing
exerted influence on Roder to reduce the park dedication fee, which was in facl
reduced.

City Ordinance establishes a formula for calculating the park dedication fee.

“The total amount of cash payment in lieu of land owed 1o the city shall be
determined by taking the total number of acres owed the municipality multiplied
by the per-acre appraised fair market value of the total development.” MNorthfield
City Code, section 34-709 (emphasis added). City staff used recent sale prices
for the properties as a proxy for appraised market value in order Lo save the time
and expense involved in an appraisal.

Mayor Lansing's memeo to Roder dated March 20, 2006 protested the amount of
the park dedication fee. The memo also identified political realities faced by the
Mayor., Mayor Lansing expressed concem that he would "look very bad” if the
Council waived the fee or if staff reconsidered the amount. Mayor Lansing wrole
this was a “staff blunder.” He indicated, “We better figure something out FAST."

Roder indicates Mayor Lansing spoke with him regarding the fee and the Mayor
appeared “very agitaled” about t. Roder indicated he fell “a lot of pressura from
the Mayor” to reduce the fee. Mayor Lansing confirms he spoke 1o Roder aboul
the fee. Mayor Lansing admits he thought the fee was "a mistake [that] should
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have been deall with.” Brain O'Connell recalls staff being pressured by the
Mayor lo reduce the fee amount.

Mayor Lansing admits he acted in his capacilty as Mayor when communicating
with Roder about the park dedication feea.

Roder responded by suggesting the City use the "assessed value” of the land as
a basis for the fee calculation. O'Connall confirmed the assessed value to be a
considerably lower amount than the appraised value. At the City Council
meeling on March 20, 2006, Roder stated an error had been made in calculating
the park dedication fee for Six Hundred on Division. The Council approved the
proposal for a minor subdivision with a reduced park dedication fee of 54,800,
Mayor Lansing recused himself from the meeling to avoid whal he described as a
*perceived” conflict of interest.

Mayor Lansing attempted to justify his efforts to effectuate a fee reduction by
asserting the original fee calculation of over $25,000 needed correction. The
formula sel forth in the Northfield ordinance appears relatively unambiguous. To
the extent thal the application of this formula to a particular project would be
unduly burdensome, the Council is vested with discretion lo waive or reduce the
fee amount. The ariginal staff calculations appeared lo apply the formula
correctly. However, even if the City applied the fee calculation formula
incorrectly, the conflict of interest analysis would remain unchanged.

Mayor Lansing recused himself from the March 20, 2006 City Council meeting to
avoid a “perceived” conflict of interesl. Rather, he stepped away from his role as
a member of the City Council to discuss or vote on this topic because of his son's
involvement with the project. The conflict of interest was more than “perceived.”
Mayor Lansing's son would enjoy direct financial benefits with the successful
completion of the project. Despite these circumstances, Mayor Lansing
exercised considerable influence over the amount of the park dedication fee. He
worked behind the scenes, oulside the view of the City Council, and admitiedly in
his capacity as Mayor, 1o effectuate a reduction of more than $20,000 in the
amount of the park dedication fee. It is the investigator's opinion that this
conduct violated sections 2-126 and 2-127 of the City Code.

The Ehlers report: Ehlers provided an analysis lo the City in late September,
2006, which evaluated the financial retumns associated with a number of potential
sites for the new liquor store. The cover page of the report ranked 600 Division
Street as providing the lowest economic return of any of the locations then being
considerad.

The undisputed evidence establishes Mayor Lansing’s wrillen and verbal

direction to Roder conceming the report. Mayor Lansing directed Roder not o
disclose the report o anyone.
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Ma:.rnlr Lansing attempted (o justify his conduct by pointing out the report
contained inaccuracies. The only inaccuracies Mayor Lansing identified,
however, pertained to 600 Division Street. While the report may have contained
errors, the existence of inaccuracies remains irrelevant to the conflict of interest
analysis. Mayor Lansing had the aption of identifying his familial relationship to
the project and speaking as a member of the public to point cul errors in the
report. He did not do so. He instead directed the City Administrator to “keep a
lid” on the report. A private citizen lacks the authority to order the City
Administrator to bury or withhold information due lo perceived inaccuracies.
Mayor Lansing used his authority as an elected official to prevent unfavorable
information about his son's development project from making it to the City
Council or allowing it to surface in public. It is the investigator's opinion that this
conduct violated section 2-127 of the City Code.

Engaging McComb: Following the Ehlers report, Mayor Lansing initiated a new
analysis by the McComb Group. Despile his son's interest in the project, Mayor
Lansing arranged to deliver materials and discuss the work the McComb Group
would perform for the City. Bill Gorton, of the McComb Group, observed that
Mayaor Lansing wanted a neutral, outside party to identify the flaws in the Ehlers
report so the Mayor wouldn't be the one “jumping up and down.”

Mayor Lansing wenl beyond speaking as a pavate citizen as permilted by the
Code of Ethics. Rather, his October 3, 2006 memao 0 Roder direcled further
analysis of existing information for the Council to consider. He acted in his
capacity as Mayor and represented the City of Northfield when he selected
materials to present 1o the McComb Group, met with them and provided them
with materials, and outlined the scope of work McComb would perform on tha
City's behalf. 1t is the investigator's opinion that this conduct violated section 2-
127 of the City Code.

Efforts to influence Director McBride: Mayor Lansing met with Finance
Director Kathleen McBride as she worked on a report for the March 5, 2007 City
Council meeting on site selection. Mayor Lansing suggested the lease rates
McBride projected for 600 Division Street were too high. Itis plausible any
private developer might be granted the opportunity o meet with city staff o
discuss financial projections for a development project. Mayor Lansing did not
insist McBride alter the numbers in her report, but merely suggested it. McBride
rejected his suggestion and Mayor Lansing let the matter drop. Itis the
investigator's opinion no violation of the Ethics Code occurred in these
circumstances.

Coaching / influencing City Administrator Roder: Roder's account nf the
events indicate Mayor Lansing mentioned the liquor store frequently during their
discussions of City business. Roder indicated Mayor Lansing “coached hirm
along the lines of a lease being in the best interest of the City. Only the
developers of 600 Division Street proposed a lease. Roder indicated Mayor
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Lansing linked discussions of the liquor store 1o Roder's pay and successful
future as a City employee. Documentary evidence supports Roder's account.
Indeed, one document from Mayor Lansing to Roder suggested deferring a
closed City Council meeting to consider the liquor store projecl. Mayor Lansing
closed the memo by saying. "l could use the closed session to finish our
performance review and salary examination.”

The documentary evidence supports the conclusion that Mayor Lansing did in
fact seek 1o influence Roder and the messages he would convay to the Cily
Council. A private citizen does not have on-demand access to a city
administrator, but Mayor Lansing did. MNor can a private citizen establish an
actual or perceived link between a particular developmenl project and the
administrator's terms and conditions of employment. Mayor Lansing did. It is the
investigator's opinion Mayor Lansing's conduct in this regard viclated section 2-
127 of Ihe Code of Ethics.

Information for the March 5, 2007 City Council meeting: The City Council
agenda for March 5, 2007 included discussion of the sile selection for the liquor
store, Mayor Lansing preparad a number of documents thal he gave to Koder.
The documents built a stronger business case for 600 Division Street than
existing staff reports reflecled. Mayor Lansing wanted “his” information to go to
the Council. He later complained in writing that Roder acted inappropriately by
refusing to change staff input to the Council o reflect the Mayor's information.

Roder acknowledged Mayor Lansing provided some valid points for
considaration in the March 5" documenis, but refused to give these documents
to the City Council or change the reports already prepared.

Mayor Lansing responded by explaining he acted on “legal advice” from Altorey
Roger Knutson. According to Mayor Lansing, Knutson advised him lo make sure
the Council had complete and accurate information concemning the liquor store
project. Mayor Lansing makes the unsupportable leap of translating this into an
assertion that Roder should have changed staff information prepared for the
Council to reflect Mayor Lansing's inpul.

Knutson provided a vastly different recollection of the advi-:ra he gave Mayor
Lansing. Knulson indicated he told Mayor Lansing he or his son could go to the
podium and address the Council to address inaccuracies in any stafl information
presenled, Knutson related thal he told Mayor Lansing he could not take any
actions as Mayor on the subject because of a confiict of interest.

The investigator believes Knutson's account deserves far greater waight than
Mayor Lansing's. Knutson is an experienced municipal attorney. It smacks of
implausibility that an attorney with his experience _wnuld advise an elected official
lo use “back channels” to manipulate information intended for a governing body
wihen a conflict of interest existed. It is far more likely that Knutson provided
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Ma'_.r:ur Lansing with legally sound advice, that is, not to take any actions in his
official capacity due 1o the conflict of interast.

Roder described his refusal to provide Mayor Lansing's information to the City
Council as a turning point in his relationship with the Mayor. He indicated Mayor
Lansing became increasing agitated with him after his refusal. Mayor Lansing
declined to describe this event as a walershed moment in his relationship with
Roder. He did, however, acknowledge a great deal of frustration over the
inaccurate information presented to the Council,

Mayor Lansing used his position as an elected official to insist that cerain
information come before the City Council. In particular, Mayor Lansing used his
slatus as Mayor in an effort to present the Council with infarmation casting his
son's project in a much more favorable financial light. The fact that Roder
refused to yield to Mayor Lansing's efforts does not mitigate the inappropriate
behavior. It is the investigator's opinion that Mayor Lansing's conduct in this
regard violated section 2-127 of the City Code.
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UE TW

Did City employees or officials act improperly regarding the issuance of a
temporary certificate of occupancy ("TCO") for second floor office space al 618
Division Street South?

ANALYSIS AND CONCLUSION

The question of whether the TCO was propery or improperly issued has already
been examined and resolved. The City of Northfield relained the Campbell,
Knutson law firm in October, 2006 (o investigate the issuance of the TGO.
Atlomay Andrea McDowell Poehler conducted the invesligation. Her

investigation report began:

“This investigation is the result of a complaint received by the City
from Mayor Lansing concemning the issuance of a Temporary
Certificate of Occupancy ("TCO") to New Division Development
Company for Unit 201, 618 South Division Streel, Northfieid ...
Mayor Lansing believes that the TCO was emoneously issued and
should ba revoked.”

Poehler's investigation report concluded:

*Given the Building Official's discretion under the Building Code
and the Building Official’s clear evaluation of the safety of the site
for the proposed temporary use, it was not erroneous for the
Building Official to issue the temporary cerificate of cccupancy for
the business usa.”

(Source: Poehler Report, Oct. 13, 2006, p. 9) Poehler's report reflected
she conducted an appropriately thorough investigation of the facts. There
is no basis for questioning the quality or accuracy of her analysis or
conciusions.

® The repart miry contain private personnel data, 1t should be reviewed by legal counse!
for the City before being released 1o the pulblic
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IS REE

Did City employees or officials act improperly following the issuance of a

temporary certificale of occupancy for second floor office space at 818 Division
Streat South?

OVERVIEW

On Seplember 21, 2006, the City of Northfield issued a Temporary Certificate of
Occupancy ("TCO") permitting the accupancy of Suite 201 atl 618 Division Street.
Suite 201 was one of the residential condominium units developed by New

Division Development Company. The effect of the TCO was to permil Randy
Lulz and Beth Closner to use this space for their business.

Mayor Lansing had a personal and family interest in Irying to keep Lutz and
Closner from occupying 618 Division. This investigation concludes Mayar
Lansing exerted improper influence with regard to the City’s handling of the TCO.
This investigation further concludes Mayor Lansing exerted improper influence
with regard to the oulside investigation thal reviewed the issuance of the TCO.

FACTS
Background concerning 618 Division
Lutz and Closner are principals of New Division Development Company, LLC
(*"NDDC"). On or about Aprl 19, 2005, NDDC purchased the property at 618
Division from the Lansing Family Trust. On or about the same date, DHJJ (David
Lansing) acquired the assets of Lansing Hardware from the Lansing Family
Trust. (Source: Lansing memo to Roder, Mar. 16, 2006)

The terms originally envisioned by the Lansing Family Trust and NDDC regarding
618 Division included:

o NDDC would lease space to DHJJ for operation of the hardware store,
o Conversion of the second floor into two residential condominium units.

= Using proceeds from the sale of the two units for further development
activities.

NDDC abtained bank financing to purchase the property at 618 Division Streel.
The Lansing Family Trust also carried a second morigage from NDDC. (Source:
Lansing memo to Roder, Mar. 16, 2006)

Lutz and Closner developed two residential condeminiums on the second floor of
the building. They could not sell these as residential units because there was no
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code-compliant honzontal fire separation between the first floor hardware store
and the second floor. (Source: Randy Lutz and Beth Closner)

Issuance of the TCO

Aside from their efforts to redevelop 618 Division Street, Lutz and Closner are
alsa principals in Construction Consulting Partners, which provides construction
management and other services. They were formerly located in the metro area
and sought o relocate their business to Northfield. They requested a TCO fram
the City so they could situate their business in one of the condominium units on
the second floor at 618 Division Streel. The City rejected past requests for a
TCO, but upon reconsideration, decided to issue the certificate. (Source:
Poehler repor)

Litigation activities

For reasons not pertinent to this investigation, the business relationships
between the parties involved with 618 Division became contentious, Substantial
litigation ensued. Parties to the litigation have included NDDC, the Lansing
Family Trus!, Lee Lansing, David Lansing, DHJJ, Lutz and Closner. Mayor
Lansing explained that part of the overall dispute involved the question of
whether NDDC had any legal right under the various agreements o occupy the
premises at 618 Division Streel. (Lansing Intv. at 83)

Mayor Lansing’s reaction to the TCO

According to Roder, Mayor Lansing was “very agitated” when the City issued the
TCO. (Roder Intv. at 53), Mayor Lansing described himself as “@xtremely
disappointed” and “absolutely distraught” over the City's decision 1o issue the
TCO. (Lansing Intv. at 95)

For Mayor Lansing, the issuance of the TCO complicated the ongoing legal
dispute with NDDC: “Once they're in there, they're hard lo get out. MNow uh, uh
=0 that, there's no lease, they agreed in writing to pay for Hqcmutl.r. never paid
for any electricity, not a nicke!, nothing, period, zero.” {Lans.mglinh.n. at 83)
According o Roder, Mayor Lansing told him “repeatedly” the City should revoke
the TCO. (Roder Intv. at 54). As set forth in Poehler's report. Mayor Lansing
believed the TGO should have been revoked. Mayor Lansing does not deny
telling Roder to revoke the TCO:

Evereft: No. They're similar, These are all the same thing. Did you
suggest to Al Roder that he should revoke the lemporary
cerificate of occupancy?

Lansing: | think that —well, not that Al Roder would do iL. Somebody
would do it, and the state law calls for it. It doesn’t suggest

Page 47



it; it says that you have to, unless you don't wanna follow

stale law. If it was = if it was issued = if it were issued under
false, misleading, or inappropnate information, it has to be -
it has to be repealed. That's nol maybe, it says il has to be.

{Lansing Intv. at 96)
Mayor Lansing’s personal / family interests in 618 Division Street

Mayor Lansing wrote memos that established the City's issuance of the TCO
financially impacted his family.

The following memo from Mayor Lansing to Roder indicated Lutz and Closner
were indebted to the Lansing Family Trust and David Lansing. Mayor Lansing
asserted the City's issuance of the TCO allowed Lutz and Closner to “occupy a
space for which they have not paid and have no right to.” Mayor Lansing further
asserted the City's actions could end up “making this burden even heavier” for
his family.

AL

Wi mx ol of (e o this one!

1 harve st tald you this before — | do ool want i 10 inflemee smvibieg thel yeo may think or do
This is publac mbormution, humﬂ{

1. Latz and Closer have bees @ forechosure action sioor Jammey of 2006

2 Lz and Clomer have pot paid the property s, ~ nearly $20,000

3. Ltz mnd Closney bave not paid the tradesman snd Biom bave been filed ~ $100,000
4. Lotz msd Closner owe Darvid o grest deal of money

% Lutz and Clonsey gwe Lassing Family Trist s grest deal of money — $430,000 pho
6. Lutz and Clomner have been in default with their bank lomn — $910,000 phus

These people are in dosp trostle and arn enly able to pet out of tmekle by making neoe = using others
o be misinformed.

Now, the Citry of Morthfickd has allowed tham b cocupy & space for which they bave nol paid for e=d bave
norightta, 171 had had my idea that this coudd have happenad, 1 would bave ssked the Coun for 2
ingusction 10 st this from huppesmg. | coukl not do Sut when they wens slready maving i —

Wou see, 8 sometime o the odher, & i very Hoeky that these respomdbsilities will fall again wpon the back
of the Lansing Family. | am very sensitive sbout making this burden even hexvier by the actio of our
own Ciy.

Another memo by Mayor Lansing, printed below in redacted form, mf_ers. o the
“G18 Division fiasco.” Mayor Lansing indicated the “fiasco” was the situation
having resulted from the City's issuance of the TCO. tl..:ensmg Ifnw, at 103) In
his memo to Roder, Mayor Lansing indicated the “fiasco” cost him “many
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1 .000’s of dollars — oul of pocket” and had put "a great deal of strain” in the
warking relationship between the Mayor and City Administrator,

Memo to:  Rodey Privale
bema fhom:  Lsnsing

icsao dabe: [T 000G

Mamno gublety: 'V irioas

Hi Hig Bay!

1 il harve a0t had mn “official notification” of Be 618 Division fiasce!  That ing costs me many 1,000'3
of dollars — out of pockel = | vk st the extirg meticr et & great deal of strui befwoon yousnd L 1
hope — bt | doubs — i it s owver el | cam not takos thess kinds of hits over snd over again.  For you, |1
would take o billet to the chest — pena-TEn 1 am taking sedhing any morel

The Campbell, Knutson investigation

According to Roder, Mayor Lansing seemed very agitated lfﬁuﬂng one of their
meetings conceming the TCO. Lansing said he “wasn't going to put up with this
anymore.” Roder interpreted the remark as a signal that Mayor Lansing might
sue the Cily. In an effort to bring calm to the situation, Roder suggested they
contact Knutson for assistance in resolving the situation. (Roder Intv, a!.IE-Ii-SS':
A mealing occurred amang O'Connell, Administrator Roder, Mayor Lansing and
Attorney Knutson to discuss the investigation. A decision emerged thal
Knutson's firm would investigate the issuance of the TCO. On the day after the
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meeting, Mayor Lansing wrote to Knutson. Lansing wrote in his capacity as

“Mayor” to confirm the scope of the work and the und i
erstandings th
developed during the meeting. e

Mr. Lez Lansing For Senlemen Purposcs Only
Mayor Sent by Fax 10 65310523550

618 Soush Devieian Anorecy Client Privilege
Horhfield, MM 55057

117 Engandale CXTice Center
1380 Corpotate Center Chrve
Eagon, Minmesann 531210

Dicar bir. Kavotson,

As | understoad [rom cur cohvernstion with Mr. Roder,
1. The invessigation will be ooe specilic wpec & a Gme, bt s review will be very Seough,
2. T findiegs will be provided to the Administator and Mayor, along, with & recoseomendation

3. Tise sction plan, il one should be recommended, will be initiated by ha Adeoinismuor
4, T s of the exsonce

Oether aprocments, & | undersiood tem o be:
1. Cosfldentiality will be strictly obsorved
2 Employecs will mot be & conployment rak for cooperiting, with the investigation. Hovwewer,
all emg oyees. will be sulsoct o existing work rulee
1, A sction plan of comective mexures will be implemented if 30 warranted
4, ALl Bindings will be comained & sritien rope, by subjec

Croaly s Objedived

4. Premols comective acthons of any situation or poronal bohavior that inbibits
‘bes pmctices” in bocal goveormenon

As | undorstand our work plan, e first issee will be 1o review recent evenis which resulied i the ismance
ol & Temporary Dccupancy Conificate being paoed.  This subject i o good one W review. Firx of all, i
i1 a recem occuarrace aind B very S sensitive malicor. 1 i expected that this review will be expanded o
caamioe n liat of danes involving the rodevelopment of 400 Diviskon Sereet.

1 undberstond thed this imvessigathon shall begin on 10/%-10/10 mnd will take sbost thres days b cxmmplete.
What | am less «lear abowt is cotrective sction, shoudd it be warmanied.  Wha i respamble for cosrective

s b e mocermpHhed T Whﬁmlrmmniw-rﬁmhwmﬂdudmb-
nothing s done’ mhumhmmhmdmmmwm

Thers are a ot t[:pﬁim-:dmhlumnmhumﬂuhmhrdlﬂm.
Ilunw:-tmnimmﬂm-dmn:umitmim If afier sl of this thme e
effort is invested, and i does pot manes amyway... We should not even sart. I my experknce, there is
M;Wmmmmmhm»#ﬂmﬁrqhmﬂmuh
dons™.  Agaimn, H’mﬂmhuﬂnnﬂdmhﬂ:nhhwnﬁthMmanhm:m
ihi ... W shontd mot even sias thils revies,

ully,

Coopiy b Em Admutnstrator Bodor

Page 5




Results of the investigation

As noled above, Poehler conducted the investigation. She issued a report on

October 13, 2006, The report concluded the building official did not err in issuing
the TCO.

Mayor Lansing's reaction to the investigation
Mayor Lansing sent a fax to Poehler dated October 19, 2006. He staled:

“Qur agreement with your firm was that you would not provide a
legal conclusion or course of conduct for the City as a result of this
investigation. This is an extremely important distinclion. Once your
scope of work has passed the investigation state, your are then
being asked to judge the merits of the matter. We agreed, up front,
for your investigation would not do that.”

(Lansing fax to Poehier, Oct. 19, 2006 (grammatical errors in ariginal,
internal quotations omitted)) Mayor Lansing's earlier letter outlining scope
and description of work, however, stated: "The findings will be provided to
the Administrator and Mayor, along with a recommendation.”

In response to Mayor Lansing's request, Poehler's firm issued a second report 1o
the City dated October 25, 2006. This repor omitted the conclusion that there
had been no error in the issuance of the TCO,

As explained by Roder, the report was placed in a file and no further action was
laken:

“It [the: first report] came back to the City. The Mayor reviewed it.
Ah, he sent ah, | think he sent a memo, or he called, ah, Roger
Knutson's office and said this is nol what we agreed to. | want the
report changed. Ah, the final report came through without the final
paragraph on it. Because he didn't want any findings of fact. Ah, or
recommendations if you will. So that had lo come off. Ah, by that
time the TCO was all but expired, and so | didn't do anything with
the report. |, | put itin the file so that | have it. Just, you koo,
pending whatever might come aut of it, as far as litigation that |
didn't do anything with the report.”

{Roder Intv. at 57)

Page 51



Mayor Lansing's directions to Administrator Roder

A court hearing occurred on October 24, 2006 to address legal issues related to
618 Division Streel. Al some date between Oclober 24, 2006 and November 3,
2006, Mayor Lansing wrote a memo to Roder. The memo gave Roder directives
on what actions the City should and should not lake with regard to the TCO.

Hi AL

I miesd b et this acmwer reconded o your office.  'We have talkisd this o6 86 death and then some.
Bhari, i woenething ooy up lober, | have boen advined 10 document oar work camdully.

| will abways beleve that the mssmsce of this permit wis wroog, o the least — and probably & very
parposefully inteni 1o bring harm to the Mayor aod hin fsosily besides. | only made it wore when you
Staff bied and distarted the e 1o you

A fior ma you and | are concerned this ssbioct is over, [ loew it was over on Sephember 22 ol noon.

As far x8 how you relate 1o your Saufl and what your expectations sre of them = | bope that this is just
beginning.

As i e oul, Judge Boyer oa [674 = gawe Lotz and Closher 8 pretry big spmnking — amd well tary
descrved B That b never thaend af il As you well know! | is 0o small matter than this cost e s
fortame i legal foes.

For whal i madien —

As e verdict is past lhe appeal point {1 LAVP006) then Dievid i going to sorve an Eviction Motice
hlﬁ-:ﬂ_' lim%“hﬂhlhmmmﬂmh

1 cam nuod. imuangione bow, stz nod Closner ———Fadacted
mwuﬂumm-mmw.mw. 1 betheve teat Lotz
g Cloaner knew this before the TOD was Bespd. ————

I dho ot kmew if the ity of Northfic is requined by rulks or just gencral policy to potify Lutz and Clower
that the TCO will not be remewed unless the promsised work s finished

If they are et wut of there before ten, | think Bl you betier stant plannisg Tarw you are poimg o do thet -
~ o g™ / padiock the space/ et 1batit ks polng w0 come down tn that.

I e ware et thery il e beipping fior am. exdeesion — they probably all ready bave.

e BT [0 ANYTHING UNTIL THE JUDGMENT BECOMES FINAL! THIS HAFFENS [N A FEW
DAYE.

| i ing. (Roder Inty. at
Roder confirmed he received this document from Mayor Lansing (Re Int
55) Additionally, Roder indicated Mayor Lansing asked him several limes: How
are we going lo get them oul of there? What is the process for removing them
once the TCO expires?” (Roder Intv. at 58)
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This memo gave Roder clear, unequivocal direchion: “D0 NOT DO ANYTHING
UNTIL THE JUDGMENT BECOMES FINAL! THIS HAPPENS IN A FEW DAYS.”

Mayor Lansing explained he acted in the best interests of the City by giving these
directions. Mayor Lansing indicated he did not want the City to get into trouble
far enforcing the expiration of the TRO (i.e., preventing Lutz and Closner from
occupying the building). He claimed the City could be in trouble if it prevented
Lutz and Closner from occupying the space if the civil case determined they had
a right to occupy the building. (Lansing Intv. at 107-108)

Mayor Lansing ultimately admitted, however, thal two conditions were necessary
for Lutz and Closner to accupy the building. First, they needed a TCO issued
under the building code (a determination the building could be safely occupied).
Second, they needed a legal property right lo the premises. {Lansing Intv. at
106) Mayor Lansing insists these issues are intertwined, and it was therefore
appropriate for him to give this directive 1o Roder.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The Lansing Family Trust had a financial interest in the property al 618
Division Straet as the holder of a second mortgage.

2, Agreemenis existed between NDDC and an entity or entities under the
control of members of the Lansing family delineating NDDC's rights 1o
occupy the premises at 618 Division Sireel.

3. Lee Lansing, David Lansing, and entilies they cantrolled, were engaged in
litigation with NDDC. The position of the Lansing family was that NDDC
had no rights to occupy the premises at 818 Division Street.

4. The City was not a party to the litigation mentioned in Paragraph 3 of
these Findings and had no stake in the oulcome of that legal matter.

5. The City issued a TCO allowing Lutz and Closner temporary occupancy of
a condominium unit at 618 Division for purposes of operating an office.

B. Mayor Lansing admitted being “distraught” concerning the City's decision
to issue the TCO because he believed it allowed Lutz and ;lusnar' ‘1o
occupy a space for which they have not paid and have no nght 10.

7. The issuance of the TCO put financial and other burdens on the Lansing
family.

8. Mayor Lansing complained to Roder aboul the issuance of the TCD and
indicated it should be revoked.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Rudﬂr_ Euggastad having the Campell, Knutson's law firm conduct an
investigation into the issuance of the TCO.

Mayor Lansing, acting in the capacity as Mayor, cormespondad with the
Campbell, Knutson law firn to document the scope of work and
pndarstandh'lgﬁ between the City and the firm as they pertained to the
investigation.

The Campball, Knutson law firm completed its investigation and submitted
a report to tha City.

In its original form, the investigation report contained a conclusion, The
report concluded it was not erroneous for the building official to issue the
TCO to Lulz and Closner.

Mayor Lansing corresponded to the attomey who prepared the reporl. He
asserted the conclusion should be removed from the report.

The law firm responded by removing the conclusion and resubmitling the
report.

Mayor Lansing issued a written directive to Administrator Roder
conceming the TCO. In the directive, he indicated the City should start
planning how to prevent Lutz and Closner from occupying the property
upon expiration of the TCO. Mayor Lansing directed Roder not to take
any action on the TCO until the judgment in the civil suit between the
Lansing family interests and NDDC became final.

GOVERNING STANDARDS

The mayor, council members, and city administrator are “public officials” for
purposes of the Northfield Code of Ethics.

Sec. 2-127 of the Code govems conflicts of interest. It provides in relevant part:

(b) Other conflicts. Any public official who engages in any
business or transaction or has a financial or other personal interest,
direct or indirect, including an interest arising from blood, adoptive,
or marriage relationships or close business or personal
associations, which interest is incompatible with the proper
discharge of his/er official duties in the public interest or would
tend to impair hisiher independence of judgment or action in the
parformance of official duties, shall disciose the nature of such
activity or interest and shall disqualify himselfiherself from
discussion and voting, provided that such member shall be allowed
to participate in discussion as a member of the public.
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Disqualification is not called for, however, if discussion and action
by a public official will not affect him/her more than any other
member of the same group, neighborhood, business classification,
profession, or occupaltion.

CONCLUSION

::fis my opinion that Mayor Lansing's conduct violated Section 2-127 of the Code
Ethics.

ANALYSIS

The Lansing Family Trust sold the property al 618 Division Street to NDDC (Lutz
and Closner) and carried a second mortgage on the property. DHJM, Inc., a
corporation owned by David Lansing, had a lease agreement with NDDC.
Disputes arose from their collective business dealings and litigation followed.
Mayor Lansing believed Lutz and Closner owed his son David a greal deal of
money, owed the Lansing Family Trust a greal deal of money, and indicated that
Lutz and Closner were in foreclosure on the second mortgage carmied by the
Family Trust.

In the simplest of terms, one of the issues between the Lansings and NDDC in
the litigation was whether NDDC had a legal night — under the relevanl leases
and agreements — o occupy the premises al 618 Division Street. The Lansings
maintained they did not. The issuance of the TCO complicated the Lansings’
overall to keep NDDC out of the bullding. As Mayor Lansing stated, "Once
they're in there, they're hard lo get out.”

Mayor Lansing suggested to Roder the City should revoke the TCO, This would
enable the Lansings, through the City's regulatory authority (the inspection and
permitting process) to achieve the same oulcome they sought in the court sysiem
_ the “aviction” of Lutz and Closner from the building. (See undated Lansing
Memo with directions to Roder ("As scon as the verdict is past the appeal point . .
_then David is going to serve an Eviction Notice 1o Lutz and Closner.”})

Mayor Lansing engaged in activities in the capacity of Mayor in circumstances
where he and his family had an interest. Mayor Lansing had a right to speak as
a member of the public and express concems. After complaining about the
issuance of the TCO, however, he stepped into his role as Mayor and acled as a
representative of the City. He met and corresponded with the law firm that the
City engaged to investigate his complaint. As Mayor, he confirmed Ihe terms of
the agreeament between the City and the law firm regarding the investigation.

Mayor Lansing's believed the City should not have issued the TCO. The

canclusion of Poehler's report did not support the Mayor's pusilbqn. It concluded
the bullding official who issued the TCO did not err. Mayor Lansing responded
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by sending a letter to the law firm. He asseried they should not have provided a
conclusion under the terms of their agreement with the City. Mayor Lansing
placed himself in dual and conflicting roles, On the one hand, he lodged a
complaint about a City decision. An invesligation was conducled in response.
On the other hand, he acted as a City representative by directing what
information the law firm included in their report.

Mayor Lansing's conduct regarding the investigation report directly contradicted
the City's interests. The investigator concluded the City did not act improperly.
That conclusion demonstrated no wrongdoing, and no polential liability, on the
part of City officials. There was value for the City in having it included in the
report. Mayor Lansing abused his authority, He placed his inleresls above those
of the City by using his position to alter the results of the investigation.

Mayor Lansing directed the City Administrator to take no action on the TCO until
the judgment became final in the lawsuit involving NDDC. Mayor Lansing, his
family, and entities under their control had an interest in the outcome of the
lawsuit. The lawsuit did not involve the City of Northfield and the City had no
stake in the oulcome. Whaltever the verdict in the private lawsuit, it had nothing
to do with how the City should enforce the provisions of the building code. Mayor
Lansing used his authority as Mayor to give the City Administrator directions on
what actions the City should and should not take in a matier invelving his own
private and family interests.

When the interests of a public official and the City are incompatible, the Ethics
Code requires the public official to refrain from using the authority of their office.
However. the Ethics Code allows them to speak as members of the public.
Mayor Lansing did not refrain from taking official action. He confirmed the terms
and scope of work for an outside firm retained at City expense to investigate his
personal complainl. He directed the law firm to remove the investigative
conclusion from their report. He directed Roder to be prepared to prevent Lutz
and Closner from occupying the building at 618 Division Street when the TCO
expired, and delineated whal actions the City should or should niot lake with
regard to the TCO. Itis the investigator's opinion that these actions by Mayor
Lansing violated section 2-127 of the Code of Ethics.
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| FOUR

Mayor Lansing raised the question of whether the City violaled the employee pay
ptan. Mayor Lansing indicated the City announced pay cuts for some employess.
This upset them, and in the end, their pay was not reduced. In essence, Mayor
Lansing urges that telling employees their pay would be cul when in fact it was
nol created needless stress and hard feelings within the City's workforce.

Background

Minnesota municipalities use pay plans to assure they have a rational and
defansible system in place for making compensalion decisions. According 10 the
League of Minnesota Cities: “[tjhe basic building blocks required 1o develop an
appropriate and defensible classificalion and compensation plan are: 1) Job
descriptions; 2) A classification hierarchy: 3) A list of comparable cities; 4) Market
survey data from those cities; 5) A base pay schedule; and B) A narrative
description of the plan,”'"

Investigation

Human Resources Director Elizabeth Wheeler explained the City had been
operating on its former pay plan for many years. This plan included provisions
for merit pay, that is, extra pay provided on the basis of perceived merit or value
added by an employee. The City worked on, and adopted, a modemized pay
plan in 2006 or 2007, This new pay plan did not include merit pay. Rather, it
was based on market pay.’

When applied to the existing workforce, Wheeler explained, the new pay plan
provided lower compensation for a number of city employees. To address this
issue, the City announced it would reduce tha pay of those who were found to be
overcompensated. This decision was implemented.

Later, according to Wheeler, the City began union negotiations. The unions
would not agree to reductions in pay. Instead, the City and the unions agreed lo
freeze the wages of those employees who were found to be overpaid under the
new pay plan. They agreed wages would remain frozen until such time as the
pay plan provided for an increase.

1 gaurce: League of Minnesota Cities Modei Classification and Compensation Plan Framework
for Smaller Cities [wwallmnc sigrimanualicompensation/ModalCompansabion Pian.pf,
retrieved Dec. 10, 2007).

" spiarket pay” is defined as “the compensatian paid for a specific job, including informalion about
bonuses and benefits, that is determinad by a continual analysis of the compatitive job markel”
{hnp:m-mn.nru-esnur:as.abml.:nmJudlsﬂmrymimr:}u'Sahw_Hasmmh_ Salary Comparisan
_Salary_Tools_Salary_Information him, ratrigved December 10, 2007).
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Wheeler explained that following union negotiations, the City provided back pay
e non-union employees whose pay had been cut. The rationale for doing so
was o ensure thal non-union amployees were treated at least as well as their
union counterparts. Wheeler indicaled one city employee may have resigned
hefore the City issued checks for back pay.

Roder provided a summary of the evenls thal accords with the informalion
provided by Whesaler:

AR: **** These employees thal, that initially look pay cuts, were
non union or managemenl staff, that ah, fell outside of the [new
pay] system. | also informed the council that we were trealing all
employees fairly and equitably in the application of the pay plan.
Union employees, | don't have the right to take the money away,
outside of negotiations. * " * * Through union negotiations, the
union negotiated successfully lo have the peopie that fell outside of
the pay plan frozen, there would be no cost of living adjustment, no
inflationary adjustmeant, step increases, what have you. Until the ah,
system caughl up with them. At the time that the union sel up their
contract with that provision built in, all of the non union employees
that had pay cuts, had their salaries reinstated, and frozen. The
same, treated the same as what we did the union employees.

(Roder Intv. at 7-8)
ANALYSIS

The Gity has an obligation to treat its employees fairly and an obligation to its
citizens to be wise stewards of public resources. The adoption of the new pay
plan by all appearances was an effort lo meel these obligations. Reducing the
wages of members of the workforce would be, by ils very nature, an action thal
produced stress and discontentment for those impacted. There is no evidence,
however, to suggest the City violaled the employee pay plan. There is no
avidence lo indicate the City implemented the plan in any manner that was
unfair, underhanded, or inappropriate. Rather, the evidence supports the
conclusion the City went about implementing the new plan in a reasonable and
businessiike manner.
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ISSUE FIVE
Whaether the Cily has mismanaged the Crossing project.
Background

The “Crossings Project” in Northfield is a "TIF" or "Tax Increment Financing”
project. Tax increment financing (TIF) is a method of financing real estate
development costs, TIF is commonly used (o encourage developers (o construct
buildings or other private improvements. TIF uses the additional property taxes
paid as a result of development to pay for part of the development cosis.

In simplest of terms, the City of Northfield has a financial investment in the
Crossings Project. Mayor Lansing contends the City has *mismanaged” this
project. He contends that the project is in default and the City Council has
refused to deal appropriataly with the issue.

FACTS

The City of Northfield and the developers of the Crossings Project are parties lo
an agreement. The agreement provides for a three-phase development of the
Crossings Project. The agreement establishes timalines for commencement and
completion of each phase.

The actual development of the Crossings Project is not keeping pace with the
development agreement. Some who were interviewed suggested the slump in
the residential housing market may be contributing to this oulcome. There is also
an unresalved issue with land transfers from the Department of Transporiation
that may be necessary lo fulure phases of the project. A restaurant was
contemplated for the developmenl. Wark on the restaurant was 1o begin in April,
2006 and to be completed by December 31, 2007. Commencement of work on
the restaurant has yet to begin.

This issue was previously presented to the Office of the State Auditor,
Legal/Special Investigations Division (*OSA"). By letter dated July 20, 2007, the
OSA informed the City:

The Legal/Special Investigations Division af the Office of the State
Auditor received concerns about the development projecl.
Specifically, concems were ralsed that timetables, as set forth in
the Contract for Private Development by and Between City of
Morihfield and Mendola Homes, Inc., daled as of December 30,
2005, had not been mel.

The Legal/Special Investigations Division did not conduct a review
of this development project. Rather, we determined that the
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concerns thal were raised should be addressed by the City Council
and City staff, working with the Cily Attorney. We also suggested
that the City might benefit from legal advice provided by the City's
development/public finance counsel. You mentioned in our
telephona conversation that the City is working with its
development/public finance counsal on this project.

{Letter from N. Bode to Kathleen McBride, Jul. 20, 2007)

Mayor Lansing presented several questions to staff about the Crossings Project.
A September 18, 2007 memorandum from siaff reflects that substantial work and
effort was dedicated to thoroughly addressing Manor Lansing's questions.

CONCLUSION

There are no facts to be discovered or factual disputes to be resolved with regard
to the Crossings Project. There is simply nothing 1o investigate.

By comparing actual progress on the project with the schedule set forth in the
development agreement, it is evident that the project is not proceeding within the
timeframes initially anticipated and agreed upon. The question that emerges is
how the City should respond to this new reality. This investigation reaches a
conclusion very similar to that of the Office of the State Auditor: The guesﬂm as
to how the City should respond is one committed to the sound discretion of the
City Council as a whole. The evidence indicates thal City staff and other
members of the City Council do not embrace Mayor Lansing's concemns fo the
same degree he does. This indicates differences of opinion on how matters
should be handled. It is not evidence of mismanagemeant.
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STATEMENT OF SUBMISSION

This report is submitted lo the City of Northfield, Minnesota. The Northfield City
Council, acting as a whole or through a duly authorized representative, may
contact the undersigned if there are issues requiring clarification or further
information. The content of this report will not be altered or modified, except as
may be required pursuant to the provisions of Minn, Stat. § 13.04, subd. 5, bul
addifional or clanfying information will be provided upon requast.

Dated: [ 2-]7- 2057

Respectiully submitted,

100 Center Drive
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763) 682-2800

bil rettlawlic.c
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